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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of IKIO Lighting Limited (formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of IK10 Lighting Limited (formerly IKI0O
Lighting Private Limited) (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity,
and the Statement ol Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes 1o the financial statements including a
summary ol significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit. total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on thar date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under scetion 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAT™) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and Rules thercunder and we have fullilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethies. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial
Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report 2021-22 but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to réad the other information
and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements. or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

[he Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity,
and cash ows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
aceepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting, records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies:
making judgments and estimates that arc reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and [air view and are free from material misstatement. whether due o
Iraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements. the Management and the Board of Dircctors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going coneern and using the poing concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but 10 do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sullicient and appropriate 10 provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
mvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override of internal
contral,

= Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under seetion 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible



for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and.
based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate. (o
medify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease (o continue
as a going coneern,

* Evaluale the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements. including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate.
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statemenis.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identifv during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with releyant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and 10 communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the company for the year ended March 31. 2021 included in these
financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the relevant
rules issued there under and other accounting principles generally accepted in India audited by us and our
report for the year ended March 31, 2021 dated November 29, 2021 expressed an unmodified opinion on
those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the
company on transition to the Ind AS. which have been audited by us.

The comparative financial information of the company for the transition date Opening balance sheet as at
April I, 2020 included in these financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial
statements prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act
read with the relevant rules issued there under and other accounting principles gencrally accepted in India
~audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended March 31. 2020 dated December 18,



2020 expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the
accounting principles adopted by the company on transition to the Ind AS. which have been audited by us.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Cenural
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act. we give in “Annexure 17, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

a.

c.

C.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

I'he Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Fquity. and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account:

In our vpinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2022. and
taken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on March 312022
[rom being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such centrols. we give our separate report in
“Annexure 27,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act. as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company being a private limited company during the year ended March 31, 2022, the provisions of
section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

(1) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 37 1o the Ind AS financial statements:

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foresecable losses:



(ii1)

(iv)

(v)

There is no amount required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
F'und by the Company:

a) The Management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and beliet, no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregaie) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity. including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding.
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief. no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on hehall of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any
material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and until the date

of this report.

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/NS00056

e N

Pranav Jain /
Partner
Membership No. 098308 =

UDIN: 22098308ANUT XPY9¢q

Date; 226|222+
Place: Noida



ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph | under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” in the
[ndependent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of IKIO Lighting Limited (formerly 1KI1O
Lighting Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

To the best of our information and according to the information, explanations, and written representations
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal
course of audit we report that:

(i)

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment
and relevant details of right of use assets.

(B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The property, plant and equipment and right of use assets have been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assefs.

Ihe title deeds of following immovable properties which have been pledged as
security for loans taken by the Company, have been verified from the pledge
documents.

Description of property Gross Carrying Value
S (Amount In Million)
Industrial Land and Building. Plot No- 70.44

102, Sector 7. Industrial Arca |1 E.

Ranipur. Sidkul, Distt- Haridwar,

The properties where the Company is the lessee, the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (and Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly. reporting under elause 3(i)(e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.



(i)

(1i1)

(v)

(a)

(b)

(b)

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonahle
infervals during the year, except for goods in transit. In our opinion. the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

Discrepancies noticed on physical verification have been properly dealt with in the
hooks of accounts.

The Company has a working capital limit in excess of Rs 3 crore sanctioned by banks
based on the security of current assets during the year. The quarterly statements. in respect
of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and such
statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective
periods.

The Company has not made any investment in. provided security or granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies. firms. Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans.
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(c). 3(iii)d), 3Gii)(e) and 3(iii) 1 of the
Order is not applicable 1 the Company.

The Company has provided guarantee to a company during the year. The details of
the same are given below:

Particalars Guarantees
Aggregate amount during the year Rs. 10.32 million
- Others
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date Rs. 14922 million
- Others

The guarantees provided to others in earlier vears are not, prima facie. prejudicial to
the interest of the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given 10 us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect
of loans, investments. guarantees and security, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits and there are no amounts which have been
considered as deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly. reporting
under clause 3(v) af the Order is not applicable 1o the Company

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in
respect of products where maintenance of cost records has been specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules
framed there under and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed



(vii) (a)
(h)

{vii)

(ix) (a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

examination ol the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate
or complete.

In our opinion. and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, the
Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and
services tax, provident fund. employees™ state insurance. income-lax, sales-1ax,
service tax. duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues. as applicable. with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect thercol were outstanding al the year-end for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us. there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause {(a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of any dispute except for the following:

(Amount in million)

Name | Nature Gross Amount Period to | Forum where | Remarks
of the | ofdues | Amount | paid which the | dispute is  (itany)
statute () under amount pending
L | Protest (?) | relates ,
Sales | Demand ‘ 25.10 Nil 2017-18 Jaint - Appeal
Tax Under Commissioner | filed on
Act Sales \ (Appeal) 13 April
Tax Dehradun ’ 2022
| (UK)

According to the information and explanations given to us. no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the vear in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act. 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of
accounts.

According o the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not defaulied
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations
received from banks and other lenders and written representation received from the
management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 10 us, money
raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were
obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company. funds raised by the
Company on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.



(%)

(xi)

{xii)

(x111)

(xiv)

(¢)

(H

(a)

(b)

(a)

(a)

According o the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
ol the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or 1 meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. associates
or joint ventures.

According, to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not raised
any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries. joint ventures
or associate companies.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments), during the vear. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(x)a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally)
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under ¢lause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us. no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during, the
period cavered by our audit.

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for
the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us including the written
representation made to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-
blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given Lo us, all
transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. Further. the details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required
to have an internal audit system under section 138 of the Act. Accordingly. reporting
under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and
accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.



(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(x1x)

(xx)

(a)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a) and (b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company and there arc no Core Investment
Companies in the Group. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (¢) and (d) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

I'he Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutery auditors during the year. Accordingly.
reporting under clause 3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come 10 our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one vear from the
balance sheet date. We. however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other
than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VI of the
Companies Act, 2013 in compliance with second proviso (o sub-section (5) of Section
135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)2) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) The Company lias not undertaken any ongoing projects in relation to its CSR activities.

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.



(xxi) The Company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx1) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAL Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain ' ;)t
Partner B,
Membership No. (098308 1

UDIN: 22098308ANUY T X Pll%‘]
Date: 22122
Place: Noida



ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of IKIO Lighting Limited (formerly IKIO
Lighting Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IKIO Lighting Limited (formerly
IKIO Lighting Private Limited) (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“1CAI™),
T'hese responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business.
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of'its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and compleleness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectivencss. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement. including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We helicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.



Mecaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is & process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
[inancial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary 0 permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use. or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due o error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respeets. an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31. 2022. bused on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidanee Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICATL

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/L\I500056

Pranav Jain s
Partner e ——
Membership No. 098308

UDIN: 2209 8308ANYTX Pugeg

Date: 2xle J'”/
Place: Noida



IKIO Lighting Limited

(Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(AW amuunts are in Repes mulhans, unliss athemwive stated)

Note March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 16845 153.83 14597
Intanaible assets 4 046 0.50 103
Right of use of 3ssets 5 336 -

Financial assats

() Erther financial assets 5 163 086 a7
Deferrod 1ax assots (net) 7 415 41 138
Non Current Tax ssset (Net) ) 2.10 210 013
Oliar pon currpne aszote 4q 866 1.34 0,39
188.81 162.84 153.67
Current assety
Inventories 10 56235 31597 16544
Financial assets
(1} Trade receivables n 25969 15633 1640
() Cash and cash equivalents 2 635D 143 65.04
{11} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 o D49
(iv] Others " 109 1 087
Other current aasets 15 107 64 0279 7289
Total current assots 93726 578.17 356.13
Total 1.126.07 741.01 509.80
Equity and liabilities
Fquity
Fauity share capital 16 29051 050 050
Other aquity 17 51441 482 66 21602
76441 4836 276.52
Naon-current liabilities
Fimancial liabilitias
(iBortawings 18 1 og 088 2657
(1] Leaye lakilities 4 131
Piovisiang 20 743 533 1R/
Dioterrad tax 2011ty (not) 21
20.82 2621 30.19
Current liabilities
Financial Laollities
Uiorruwings 21 14722 28 51.20
(iLease Labilites: 22 140 - .
fiif) Trade payables 23
- total outstanding dues of micro and small entaiprises; and 34.20 1501 078
“tatal outstanding dues of creditors sther than mizro and small enterprises 06.07 15939 13777
() Other financial labilities 24 ELLY | 1509 10,64
Other current labilities 25 413 2.74 250
Frovizans 26 446 169 nio
Current Tax Liabilities (net) a7 12.85 -
Total current hiabilities 340.34 231.64 203.09
Total liabilities 361.66 257.83% 233.23
Total equity and liabilitios 1.126.07 _741.01 509.80
Summary »f significant actnunting polisies 1&2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finanwal statements
As perour repont of even date.
For BGJC & Assaciates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants IKIO Lighting Limited

ICA! Eitm Registration Ne - 003304N/NS0005E

oo

Hardeep Singh Surmeet Kaur
Partrn Managing Director Diractor
Membarship No. CS8308 DIN- 00118729 DIN 001 18694 .
pace: N D (DA mace:M‘u( 54y mm'z"“*‘w“f""“z‘u M)
Cate: Date: . n /
" 22006(2e22 o 2206]2002  ""22eb|>
- a
Subhash A al %lﬁd
Cro Company Secretary
M No: 056256
Place. Nl PA Piace: Na'da
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IKIO Lighting Limited

(Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Lass fer the year ended March 31, 2022
(AN amiouts are i Rupee mithons, unless otherwse stated)

Revenue

Reveriue from operations
Othar income

Tatal revenue (1)

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed
Change in inventories
Employes benefits exponsas
Finance costs

Deoreciation and amartisation EXPELey
Other ekpenses

Total expenses (I1)

Profit before tax

Tax Expenses

Current tax

Dalerred 1ax charge/ (oedit)
Relatad 1o earlier yoars

Profit after tax

Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to prafit or loss
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Iheome tax relating to these items
Other comprehensive Income for the yoar, net of tax

Total prehonsive | for the year

Earnings per equity share (in Rs.):

Nominal value of Re. 10 earh (previcus yoar Bs 10 eacn)
-Basic cilutid earning per share

~Diluted warmng per share

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes ars an integral part of these financ al statements.
A par our report of even date

For BG JC & Associates LLP
Charterad Accountants
ICAL Firm Registeation No.: DO3I0LN/NSODOSE

- ——

-

Pranav Jain \
Partner _ vl
Membership No, 093308 ' |

Placs, P\Olﬁ(ﬂ ' ’,"\\‘v BT SN (& \
Uﬂe?"—’dé,lg‘))_ s e -

Year ended Year ended
Note March 31, 2022 March 317, 2021
28 219805 159663
4 8.24 376
2,207.19 1,600.39
30 152350 105230
N (GB.O6) 732
32 26382 19449
33 544 551
34 2447 A B0
is 78.19 39.79
1,82726 132402
379.93 276.37
9311 7358
50 (1142) (100
114 -
$9.83 70.57
280.10 205.80
153 L3
(0.38} 10.26)
1.15 0.84
281.25 206.64
6 1120 823
36 12c 823

1T&2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IKIO Lighting Limited

\)\»\M Livanettony

Hardeep Singh Surmeet Kaur
Managing Director Ciractor
DIN: 00118729 [N 001 1ERYS

P!am::l&mwf)bh(‘é CU ‘4") ﬂiace:wd(lu*’
Dater 2')_( b , 20272 - Date: 55 /05/2 022~

oy

oy

:::“," S Company Secretary
M. No.: D6G255
Pace. NOTDA elace: MO l‘(q
e 22000 202 oate 9§ 3 [o, ’2—9)4'



IKIO Lighting Limited

(Fermerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Cash Flow Statemant for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amaunts are in Rapoe millions, anfess otherwie statad)

A. Cash flow fram operating activities
Net profit before tax

Adjustmants for:

Deprecigtion and amortisation

Finance cost

Income other than operating income

[Prafitli/ltse an sale of properly, plant & squipment
Bulances Written Off

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for (increase) / decruase in operating asswts:
lnventorios

Ttade recelvables

Other firancial asspts

Other assony

Adjustment for increase / (decrease) in oparating liabilities:
Trade payables

Other flingncial Hahifities

Other cutimnt liabilitiss

Provisions

Cash generated from operations

faxes and interest therenn pald

Mot cash used in operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activitios:

(Purchase)/Sale of PPE/ Intangible/ Rou Astels
Mavement in Rank Deposits

Interest incamne

Lease Liahility

Net cazh used in from investing activities

€. Cash flow from financing activitiss:

Net {decrease)/Increase n long term borrowing s from banks
Net increase/(decrensel in shors term borrowings from banks
Payment of lease liabilities

Hiance cost

Net cash generated/(used in) from financing activities

Net increase/(decrense) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents (refur to note 12}
AT beginning of tha year
-a1 end of the year

Notes to cash flow statement

(i) Cash and cash squivalents comprise
Balantes with banks,

- On curent accounts

Cash on hand

b= )

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
EFCR E 27637
2447 2460
534 561
Q.02 L.46)
(0.18) 198
.00 0.21
409.57 308.31
[2db.38) {186.53)
110321 (e 1y
10.761 (0 32)
.72 (3C05)
(35.13) 1086
1442 540
(5.€1) 734
679 443
34.87 715.05
187 460 17354
A) {52.53) (0.49)
(A5.59) (30.83)
om [EE]
oo 046
(8) (45,56) (29.89)
08 (3.69)
1850 (22 48y
0.8%)
(5.15) th 561
(K<) 102.66 (33.73)
(AeBsC) 457 {64.11)
182 66,04
£.50 193
825 130
0.25 0.23
6.50 1.93

—~Space adentinaile R Blamk-—
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g gp\ﬁ/( AN\
A
/r*. 55
N _4,
—L S )
.; \ L’l
N



IKIO Lighting Limited

(Farmerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Cash Flow Statement for the yoar ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts are fn Rupee milions. unless otherwso stated)

(1) Reconcilation batween the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

Balance as on March 31, 2022
Balance ax on Apnl 1, 2021

loan drawals (in cash)/interast acsurac during the year
Loan repayments/intarest payment durng the year

Other non cash changes
Balance as at March 31, 2022

For the yoar ended March 31, 2021

Balance as on April 1, 2020

Loan drawals (in cash)/intersst accured during the year
Loan repaymentsfinterest payment during the year

Other nan cash changes
Balance as at March 31, 2021

Non-current
borrowings (including  Current baorrowings Lease liabilities
current maturities)
.97 1763
241 2,623,30 42
[13.29) (2.70352) {84
20.89 137.41 3.3
A208 3569
457 1.843.02
{14 68) (1.561.08)
31.97 17.63 -
e

({#i). The cash flow statoment nas been prapsred undor the indirect mathad as setoutin Ind AS 7 Cash Fiow Statements.
(iv)- Notes to the Financials Statements are ntegeal part af the Cash Tiow Statomant
() The company have spent Ry 5§02 millions towards C38 expense under section 135 of the Companies Act.

As per our report of even date

For BGJC & Associatos LLP
Chartered Accauntants

ICAI Firin Registration No.: (03304N/ NSO0056

Pra n’

Partnear
Membership No (98308

Place: r\! Q {dfﬂ
DMP:) ) ’06 I lorL e

For and on bohalf of the Board of Directors of

IKIO Lighting Limited

W\

Hardeep Singh
Managing Director
DIN: 00718729

oo Tnclcana il e (et y

P 2206 (2022
(’"

=<3

Subhash Agrawal
CFO

pace: AN J Y
D .
220k [2022

Loonniret oy
Surmeet Kaur
Direttor

DIN: 00118695

Plece: i"l“w"‘u

Oote o202 (USA)

Lot

Lompany Secratary
M. Ne: 066255

Place Ng"da
Dars: 2_2'(0‘ ‘202_)_



IKIO Lighting Limited

(Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Statement of change in equity for the year endod March 31, 2022
(&l amounts aie o Rupde millicns, uiless otherviee statod)

A. Equity Share Capital**

Balance as at April 01, 2020 0.50
Change in aquity share capital turlng 2020-21
Balance as at March 31, 2021 0.50
Change In equity share caztal during 2021-22
Issuw of Bonus Shares 24980
Balance as at March 31, 2022 250.00
B. Other Equity**
Attributable to Owners of the Company

Reserves & Surplus Remeasurement of Total attributable to to
Particulars Equity Component | Retained Larning defined bencfit plans | owners of the company |
Balance as at April 01, 2020 - 276.06 {0.04) 276.02
Frofit for the year - 205.80 20580
Othar comprobensive Incames 084 .84
Total Comprehensive Income - 205.30 0.84 206.64
Adjustment during the yaar - - -
Transfer to general reserve = - -
Transter from Retained earnings -
Balance as at March 11, 2021 481.88 0.80 482.66
Profit lor the year - 280.1D 115 28125
Orther comprehansive Income - . -
Total Comprehensive Incomeo - 280.10 1.18 281,25
Issue ot Bonus Share . (249.50) - 1249 50
Transter to genera | resenva - - - -
Transfer fram Retained eamings . - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - 512.46 1.95 514.41

**The sccompanying notes 16 and 17 are integral part of these financal statemonts.

For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Baard of Directors of
Chartered Accountants IKIO Lighting Limited
A Firm Regrstration No.: 003304N/N5C0056

9@2%‘5’3’ e \’\ﬁ’\’\ Seusnatel Kowry

Pranav fain h Hardeep Singh Surmeet Kaur
Partner \ Managing Directo: Dirscion
Membership Na. 098308 DIN: 00116723 CIN: 00118695
Place: \ o | oo Piace: M{’ Q&Q‘(Uck ) Fi.\corw& (;l“)
2204202 g ) O\ 22/ 06 202.2 Oate 29108 20
O ~|
\ Jie i 4’ q -
k\é N /’ (‘/ é;’ s 0 4’/
, e /" Subhash Adrawal Sandeep Agarwal
N~ W cFo Company Secretary
M, No: D68255
“lace: AJ@1 D A Fisce. N O ]JA

Oate: 2—)—/0(—*,?03.), Date: 2—2—!0" 202 2



(i)

IKIO Lighting Limited (Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Background

IKIO Lighting Limited (formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited) (‘the Company') is a company
domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at Delhi. The Company was incorporated in
India on March 21, 2016. Subsequent to the year end, the Company has received approval from the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs on April 18, 2022, for the change of name from IKIO Lighting Private
Limited to IKIO Lighting Limited. The Company is a leading manufacturer of LED Lighting in India.
The Company delivers the right solutions and value for customers’ LED Lighting requirements
because of its innovative approach and vertically integrated infrastructure.

. Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company's financial statements up to and for the year ended March 31, 2021 were prepared in
accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of
the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act as per IGAAP (“Previous GAAPY).

As these are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been
applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in Note 49,

The financial staternent provides comparative information in respect of previous year. In addition,
the company presents balance sheet as at beginning of the previous year, that is, April 1, 2020, which
is the transition date of Ind AS.

These Ind AS financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
June 22, 2022,

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are
included in Note 2. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

The accompanying financial statements reflect the results of the activities undertaken by the
Company during the year April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022. —— wlﬂ
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

IKIO Lighting Limited (Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule || to the Act.

Based on the above criteria, the Company has ascertained its accounting cycle as twelve months for
the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company's
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off ta the nearest millions, unless otherwise
indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items:

ltems Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Net defined benefit liability Present value of defined benefit obligations.

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

* Note no 38: leases: whether an arrangement contains a lease;
* Note no 46: classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the

assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial dsset are solelx
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. : =\ ¥

)
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(v)

IKIO Lighting Limited ( Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2022 is included in the following nates:

* Note no 3: measurement of useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment;

* Noteno 3 & 4: impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable
amounts including the recoverability of expenditure on internally- generated intangible assets;

* Note nod: measurement of useful lives of intangible assets;

* Note no 50: recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which
tax losses carried forward can be used:

* Note no 37: recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions
about the likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources;

* Note no 41: measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

* Note nod6: Fair value measurement of financial instruments and impairment of financial assets.

Measurement of fair value

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
ordinary transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either -

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as fallows, based or the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

: RTINS
measurement is unobservable Z/GHRTIAN \~
o {9

/
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IKIO Lighting Limited (Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Revenue

In recognising revenue, the Company applies Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework
for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard require
apportioning revenue earned from contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis, using a five-step model.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an
amount that reflect the consideration which the company expects to receive in exchange for those
product or services at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally
the transaction price, net of any taxes/duties and discounts,

The company earns revenue from sales of LED lighting.
Revenue from sale of LED lighting

Revenue from Sale of LED lighting is recognized at the point of time upon transfer of control of
promised goods to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to
receive in exchange for those goods i.e when it is probable that the entity will recaive the economic
benefits associated with the transaction and the related revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
recognized at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the
contracted price, net of any taxes/duties and discounts considering the impact of variable
consideration.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service leval credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as
specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company'’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

i
Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition: - 9“ A:/ /‘\I\')\

ZeHT LA
FONE = Y

/ w

Y
\
"

( |

‘e The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods. f
\ '(_"i

2\

- AN WAy

._4/

-~

KIO S

\

14



IKIO Lighting Limited (Formerly IK10 Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

* At the time of entering into the agreement / raising an invoice, performance obligations in the
contract are identified. The Company delivers goeds as per terms & condition of the contract.
Contracts are of differing natures and sometimes have one specific performance obligation,
and on other occasions have multiple performance obligations. Contract liability has been
created towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligation.

* Contract fulfilment costs are expensed as incurred.

Interest income

Interest income on time deposits and inter-corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest
method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Other income
In respect of other heads of income, the Company follows the practice of recognising income on
accrual basis.

(i)  Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, net of recoverable taxes (wherever
applicable), which includes capitalised borrowing costs less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and
estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located,

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate iterns (major components) of property, plant, and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the

statement of profit and loss. >, /
W
Subsequent expenditure A /r:_

A

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a s'épara*te'\'i \\
asset, as appropriate, only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the |
~
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IKTO Lighting Limited (Formerly 1KIO Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the
reporting year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual value over their useful life using straight line method and is recognised in the statement of

profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of itemns of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative
periods are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule Il of the Act.

Particulars Useful lives (in years)

Tangible assets:

Building 60 =

Furniture and fixtures 8-10

Plant & Machinery L S 15 —
" Office equipment 5

Vehicle 8-10 S
i Cemputer equipment 3 *‘
rComputer servers and networks 6 —‘1

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates
of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets. Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata
basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from
property, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of
property, plant and equipment as the case may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and
changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets =

2 —_

R \
_An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable \)""
to the asset will flow to the company and where its cost can be reliably measured.
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(iv)

IKIO Lighting Limited (Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the
purchase price and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its
intended use.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method and is included in depreciation and amortisation expense in the
statement of profit and loss.

The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets: Useful lives (in years)
Software 5

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and
changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset
are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
asset and recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generatas
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of

~ the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis. 5)4 L,z_,

L

l

m



(v)

(vi)

IKIO Lighting Limited (Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset
over its remaining useful life.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of

that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and

financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue, except for an item recognised at fair value through
profit and loss. Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss is
expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

il Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

e amortised cost;

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVvQCQl), or
* Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is

not designated as FVTPL; w\ P TN
é ALV O T TN



IKIO Lighting Limited (Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

* theassetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FYOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as FVTPL:

* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets: and

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OC| (designated
as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVOC| as described above
are measured at FVTPL This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL i doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company assesses the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolic level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is
provided to management. The informatian considered includes:

* the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the
sale of the assets.

* how the performance of the portfalio is evaluated and reportad to the Company's management.

* the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how theose risks are managed.

* how managers of the business are compensated - e.g., whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

» the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the

—such sales and expectations about future sales activity. k‘\‘\
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IK10 Lighting Limited (Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition
are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition
of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.q. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit
margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual

cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company
considers:

« contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

« terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
prepayment and extension features; and

« terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse
features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or
premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount
that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is
treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at
initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
~ the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment IWS, if Any;llnteresté e
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IKI10 Lighting Limited (Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

income and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in statement of profit and |oss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts investments at FVOC|: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On Derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in OC| are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as inceme in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment, Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified
to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement & gain and loss

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement

of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

iii. Offsetting

Financial assets and monetary liabilities are offsat and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

iv. Derecognition

Financial assets

financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction

in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferrgq A

or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the rigsks and feyvar’c‘i; of .
L ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. 'O,
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The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the én P
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IKIO Lighting Limited (Formerly 1K10 Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial habilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. [n this case, a new financial liability based on
the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

v. Impairment of financial instruments:
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:-

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
- Financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
and debt securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following
observable data:

* significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer:

* a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;

¢ the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would
not consider otherwise;

* itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or ancther financial reorganisation;
or

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss:

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime e,pected H /\

—  credit losses. Q./ G #7%
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IKIO Lighting Limited (Formerly 1KI10 Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

Litetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months),

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than agreed credit peried.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

» the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse
by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held): or

* the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period.
Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent

that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company

determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generat'e_,s?fﬁ'cje.nt i \ \_}l
“cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial gssets thg{ are w'rftier). il
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IK10 Lighting Limited (Formerly IK10 Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is
based on the weighted average.

The Cost comprises all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net
realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits:

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses
off as the related services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc. are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders the related
service. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligation in the balance sheet.

Long term employee benefits
Defined contribution plan: Provident fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a
defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the
plan at a predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, These contributions are made to the fund administered and
managed by the Government of India. The Company has no further obligations under the plan
beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for contribution to defined contribution plan are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit and loss in the period during
which the related services are rendered by the employees.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum
payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of

employment in an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed yeér\cf' bervice: u.k
'{F Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. Benefits payable to ehglble'employees of |
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TKIO Lighting Limited (Formerly TKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Notes (o the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

the company with respect to gratuity is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the
balance sheet date.

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted
for past service cost as at the balance sheet date. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in
present value of the defined benefit obligation is recognised as an income or expense in the other
comprehensive income. The Company’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount.

The Company's determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Actuarial gain and losses are recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term benefits: Compensated absences

Benefits under the Company's compensated absences scheme constitute other employee benefits.
The liability in respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Method. done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet
date Actuarial gain and |losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount
of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax

laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 7 e
g"* 2884 / WO
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IKIO Lighting Limited (Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net
basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recagnised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax
credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recagnition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is
probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be real.

Contingent Liability, Contingent Asset and Provisions 1&1 " "'ﬂ;’,‘r < 8
=22 /'./‘\C). ; G\
Contingent liability /O\; / e \
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IKIO Lighting Limited (Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limifed)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the contral of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company.

Provisions

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. The weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for events such as bonus issue, share split or consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are

deemed converted into equity shares as at the beginning of the period, unl(eﬁhey haygbbsn issued IL\X
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IK10 Lighting Limited (Formerly IKIQ Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(xiii)  Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present
segment information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company's
Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is
the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate
within these industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm'’s length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services.
Further:

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to
the segment.

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for
determining the segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not
allocable to segments are included under unallowable expenditure.

3. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included
in unallowable income.

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective
segments. Unallowable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to
the Company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company's ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ ar ‘CODM’
within the meaning of Ind AS 108. Refer Note 40 for segment information

(xiv) Leases

Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
—lease if the contract conveys the right te control the use of an identified asset for a perlod o{ time H‘/
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the rightito contpol‘the use of
L an |d,3nt|f ied asset, the Compariy assesses whether: | Q i
?;
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IK10 Lighting Limited (Formerly IKI1O Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

. the contract involves the use of an identified asset

. the Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and

. the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use (ROU) asset and
a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with
a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-
value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the |ease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain
that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the |ease
plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if
the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

: &zl o
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IKIO Lighting Limited (Formerly 1K10 Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the
ROU asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant |ease.

Recent accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2022, as below.

Ind AS 16, Property Plant and eqguipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds
of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognized in the profit or loss but
deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant,
and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or

after April 1, 2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financia/
statements,

Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and C: ontingent Assets— The amendment specifies that the
‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate
directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be
direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an
example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has
evaluated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be material, o
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IKIC Lighting Limited

(Formery IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the yvar voded March 31, 2022
(AN wrrrceents woe in Aupew rwlliony, wnless otherwize statodt)

3 Property, Plant and Equipmeet

PUEH G Motk ooam) Accumulatod dupreciation Not block
A at Additions during  Disposal/ As ot Asat For the Dispasal/ As at Az a3t
Deseription Bpeil 1, 2021 the year fdjust Mar31,2022  April 1,2027  yoar Adj Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31,2022

Buildng 376 3175 268 295 553 2813
Computes 012 LA 026 no? 0,07 014 niz
Plant & machinery M3k 3838 a4 11508 (RN 1332 o6 26,55 8853
Lared IEEE LT S . - 658
Funiture & faduras ©2a 024 006 0aos on 03
Vohicles 22.56 35 - 29 a05 589 Usa nw
Office oquipmant 2 0re (107 348 063 Y 000 158 159

17451 msn 0.27 1241 20.58 2344 0.05 43.96 168 45
2040-21

Gross block (at cost) Accumulated depreciation Net block
e Asal  Additionsduring  Disposal Asat As at Forthe  Disposal/ Az at As at
Apvil 1, 2020 the yoar Adjustment Mar 31, 2027 April 1, 2020 ¥ Adjustimant = Mar 11, 2021 Mar 31,2021

Bukdling 3370 A3 0h 264 288 308
Camputor 0o (Vo] 012 an? 007 nas
Plant & marhinsty 513 2iw 0g7 7836 1343 D234 1309 6537
Land Jaed 568 - 3668
Furnfture & fivtures D2a 024 005 . a0u a1
Vehiclay 2607 199 150 2456 o5 500 s 1851
Cfice agipment D97 145 003 21 s 065 002 063 215

149 37 33.0s 6.50 17451 2394 136 20,58 15293
Footnate:

(i} The Comoany has alacted nd AS 101 exomplion and continies with tha carying value for 8l of its erapenty, plant and equipment as its desmd cast as 3 the date of transiticn
03 Thwrw e o impairment lesses recsgnaed dunng tha yoar

1) There are 1w sxchange difforences adiestod n Froperty, plant & oguipmert

W) Rt nots no 37 for cagstal e itments

(v) The Company has net carried oat any ravaluation ef property. slant and equipment fo e yoar endod Mzt 31 2022, Mard 41, 2021 and April G|, euely
Ivil] Retér oote o 18 w21 regarting byt secat on/oledge of Mrop=iy, Plaot aind Equiomaent agalnst the borowings from banks

4 Intangible assels
202122
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103 013 . 16 066 = 056 .50
Footnots:

(h Thate ara no intemally o soecased rtang ble auets

1kl The Cormpany has act carrid out any revaliation of |Lagie aeset for the year eidiad Mareh 31,2022, March 31,2020 and April 01 2020

{itd) Thero are no other rest=icton oo bithe of inkanglble assets other than as 3 ieady discozed

(v} Thwie e i aechange sifferencas adjusted |0 wiang:ble assets

W)The compary hive pot aoquined witangile ascets fras of chmye, or for nomina corsideration by way of & government grivee
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1KIO Lighting {imited

(Farmuedy [KIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(AT amaunts are in Repwe ayitfions, undege aherwite stated)

§ Right-of-use assets

Resonciflation of carrying value Amount
Gross carrying amount as on Apedl 01, 2020
Dpeniog Bakanes

additon dunng the ysar -
Reversi due to closure of lease sgresment (Riglar fooinole)

Closing gross camying & t March 37, 2021 -

Addibon during 1he year 405
Raveesal dus 10 dosure of ease agresment (Refer fontnats)

Closing gross carrying amount March 31, 2022 408
Accumulated amortisation & impairment
Openinn hadance -
Ahartisation for the you

Reversad due to clos Wwu of lease agrenent (Refar (oamota)

Gulngmuaulgtpd rtisation & impai as on March 31, 2021 - .
Accumulated amortisation & impaicmient
Amortisation for the yea o%

Ruseral ds 1o dosie of fase agreement (Retwr footnofe|

Closing accumulated amartisation & impairment m on Mardy 37 3035 0469
Net carrying amount as at Aneil D1, 2020

Net canying amount ay at Marefs T, 2021
Net carrying wmount as 3t Mareh 31,2022 336

Note -
1) Biring the yoar 2001 32 and 2620-21, the cempany lecogrined Haht of Lue assety 4 pes Ind AS 116 Levwwes (Retor note 10 38)




IKIQ Lighting Limited
{Formudy IKIO Lighting Povwle Limited)

Notes 1o the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(AN amaunts a0é i Repee mihers, unliss olhenwiss statech)

€ Other Financial Assots

March 31,2022 March 31,2021 Apnil 61, 2020 _

Secueny depasit

154 ogl [ F
Balarcg wits Ruveniie Aihoritie, 005 005 008

1.63 0.86 8.77
Notes

Nar-ztitrent bank balance indude:

Deposrts of R 850 mallions (Mareh 31, 2081 and Aprid 01, 2020 Rx 050 millions and Rs. 0.50 milions tespectively) has bewn made far itaue of g uaantess | n Tavee 58 valus
3ded tar authorities

7 Deferred tax assets March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 April 01,2020
Defermed wx-assels jirfer note g 50) 415 a1 138
TR S Y ] 138
& Other nun current tax assets March 31, 2022 March 31, 2027 April 01, 2020
Irrccomm taw refundable [ Net of Cumidat ve Prouigien for Taw of © 9912 sdllions (March 31, 209 ) 3nd Al 0, UR 1] 2.1y 013
2020: Re 13 38 millicars and Hx Q55 milhoog respoctve )
210 !lg 073
9 Other non current mxswts March 31, 2022 March 3 12027 April 03, 2020
Balance with govsiment authosities n3a f.38 49
Capital Advances L 1.4 -
Prenaid rent - o -
Prepwd expuiues - 012 -
_86¢6 134 0.39
10 Inventories Macch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
vm.m-ramummumummw
Haw siaterials 46214 276 20 13136
Wark-meprogress 7am 2531 2ZBR
Firished goods 1901 Sada 1570
O
(i) Svock in transt 138 400
315.97 169.44
Inventones ars pledged as sacunty foc bettowmas taken from oank jeefer note rol8 snd 21)
11 Trade recelvables _March 3 Macch 31, 2021 01,2020
Unsecured
Considered good 24993 13029 4530
Having sgnificast iecreass in cradit risk 1005 1801 1%
Less prowision for thie expoctid credit loss [LEIV] G

T TE— PR

259,69
Footnote:
ing Sch tor Trads Recmivables- March 31, 2022 -
(] &3 3 March 31, 2022 from due date of nt |
o Not Due | 0-6 Months | 512 months i-i Yoars 2-1 Years 3 Total
! Irade receivabler — conuiderad qan 249,33 - = 24983
fif) Undisputed Trade rmcatvabios — Hoving F
P : 7] 3 : -
s gnifizant incraase n credit ik v e w8 s b
LesE provision for he experted eradit Icse 7 07 (D05} .07 1) : €30))
Total 249493 .17 026 o 0,12 - 259 69
= —Spcm inteptonay (et Bk \X‘ @’!
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IKIO Lighting Limited
(Farmedy IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notws to the Financial Statemonts for the yoar wnded Masch 31, 2022
(Al amaunts are in Rupee milipns, wwess othecuic staked)

Ageing Schedule for Trade Receivahles. Marci 31,2021

Outstanding as at March 31 2021 from du= date of payment
articulars L
" Not Due | 0-6 Months | 6-12 months |  1-2 Vears 23 Vears ;" Shaw Total
15934 - = - RECET)
. 1729 n6s €07 1R 01
. A0 00 1C.02) = 1092}
T 73929 16.49 055 0.05 - . 156,38 |
Ageing Schedule for Trade Recsivables- Apeil 01, 2020
Outstanding a5 3t april 07, 2020 from dus date of ent
o Not Due | 0-5 Months | 672 months | 1.2 Years 23 Years """" shien Total
ed Tracds recovabley — (n@d’#ﬂd 4530 - = 4530
' recavables — Having . 110 = - = 110
Aash Ll ;
45 %0 110 =—\J - . - 2640

The Company hus mivassed expucted cedit less of tade tecevaldy based an smplifiad spproach as par Init AS 109 - F

1. Ter axplanat or an the Corhpany credis sk managament peocesy, refar pate 46,
2. Tradke tereivables are mon interyst busing

Inarcial Instiwment

3. Trade revovvables are pledged as secusitios lo- barrowings tsken frem banks trefer note 18 and 21

12 Cash and ensh equivalents
Ralancas with bardy
“On rurrent aecounls
“Cazh on Mand

For explamatian on the Campany cindit ask managen ent process, frefar anta A6y
13 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixad dapost matunty penod mare thun 3 memhs ul koss han £ 2 menths

For eaplan ation an the Company credit rgh manage sl process, 2fer noto 45)
14 Other current financial assets

Secunty depost

Insurance claim

Fu1 cxplination an the Company nes management process frafer note 46)
15 Other current assets

Prepmd sepense

Advances 19 spnlies

Adianee salary & wagas

ke assets

Prepaid feuse

Balanca witts governmnnt authoritise

M 31,2022 arch 31,2021 April 0 0
635 170 5582
05 023 022
6.50 183 5£6.04

March 37, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2620

001 .49
-~ 001 2.4!

March 31,2022 March 30, 2021 April 07, 2020

109 f.09 a0
. - n77
109 1.08 0.47
March 17 Masch 31, 2021 01, 2020
1359 208 0
sazt 3150 SRl
031 08 011
10.06
0o -
5345 4858 4055
10763 10273 7389

—Shwce intentiomally Ikt bhgrh -
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1KIO Lighting Limited

{Farmerdy IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the yoar ended March 11, 2022
(Al wirovnty ave o Rupee mdlions. unless otherwee sated)

16 Equity sharw capital

dmmummmdﬂvnaﬁuhﬁg.wwmdkt 10 per sharg, reforred to hersin as squity shares. —

= March 11, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01,2020

Number A t Number A Numb A
Authonsed Shares
Equity shares of 10 aach 25000000 25000 50000 050 0000 050
3000000 23000 0000 050 50000 oso

Tssued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Eyuily shares ol 10 sach 25003000 25000 SO0 050 SU000 650

25000000 35000 tooos 0.50 50008 0.50

b Reconciliation of the shares outstanding st the b ginning and at the end of the reparting period.

March 11, 2022 March 31, 2021 Aprii 01,2020
Equity Shares

Number A t Numb Amount Number A
Shares autstanding st the Begiining of the year L0000 nso 50000 nLo Sp00n ns0n
Add ;e of Bonus Shares 24950000 24950 0 U -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 25000000 250,00 50000 0.59 50000 ~_b.so

 Terms/rights attached to aquity share
Vating
Each holder of equity shares is wntitled 10 Lne vists nar shars ~eld.

Dividends

The Company declares ane pays dividends in [ndian russes The dividerid proposed by the Suard of Directors iy subject teaoprovil of the tharsholders i wnisulng Annisl
swirseal moeting SEeeoy n the case whin i dividond (s distribartest. Thee Coompany hay riot disti biterd ey dividend m tie cormmm year and pwvaous yoar

Liquidation

In the wwent of kgaidition of the Comgany, Hw helders of eauity shares shall be antitled o receive all of the remaining assoty of the Company after dintribution of =l
profererhial amounts if any. Such detiibiution ameunts will Se in arapartion tn the numbet of eyuity Shares held by the sharehaldors

d. The Company does nat havs any Holdig Campany.

€. Detail of sharwholders holding more than 5% of equity shure of the Company

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 Apnl 01, 2020
Holding in %of total equity  Heldingin % of tolal Holding In % of lotal
N af sharsholder
g numbers shares mbs oquity shares  numbers  equity shares
Equity shares of INR 10 wach fully paid up held by -
Hardewp Singh 14959670 S 9T 30000 68.00% 20000 LO.00%
Surmest Kaur 10600000 4000% 20000 2000% 20000 2300%
l.hqmmmbuolowkyhuhmdmmdﬂ'wwuolﬁwm' dimtely p ding the reporting date:
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2027 March 31, 2020
Mo of Shares No. of Shares No of Shaves
Equity snarns alfotted as fully paic Banus shares ty capitsizaton 24950000
of tesarves
0 Details of chares held by promatsrs
No. of shares at Change No. of ghares % of Total > eh-ww"_
Partictitars Promoter Name the beginning of  during the 4t the end of S during the
the yoar year the yaar ynor
Az at March 31,2022
“quty thacss of INR 10 aaen fully paid Hardosp Sngh 30000 14969670 WMIEET)  Sanwk 49RIBINE
Eyuly sares of INR 12 2ach fudly jpaid Swrmeet Kaur JUC0D 9980000 TO 00N ALAI A3900G.00%:

Total 50,600 22549670 24999670 1o0% 4589830%
As at March 27, 2021

Equity shaves at INR 11} wach fully pad Hamieep Suigh 20000 40000 S00U% s

Equity shares o INR 10 wach fully foaid Sarmee| Kaur 0000 - 20000 A0 DO,

Total 50000 s 1 0.00

Asat Aprl 01, 2820

Equity shares of ING 10 wach fully g Hardewp Singh 10,000 = 30000 50 00%

Eruity siaes of INR 10 eazh filly pasg Surmest Kaur 20000 ' 200061 AU00% z

Tatal —30000, . 0.00%

b o class of slisnes lavie toen allstted as flly pard up pursasns o contractish wilthout payment being recevied in cagdy o Bought back divkag the penod of § yoars
imtrndiately procwndin g 1he balancs 3 set date
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IKIO Lighting Limited

(Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes 1o the Financial Statemants for the year ended March ¥, 022
(Al wrraunis are in Rupee owinss, unfess othoniss Statwell

17 Other equity March 11, 2022 March 31, 2021 Aprii 01, 2000
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Oaering balance A87 .86 27608 27606
141 Net grofit lor the year 2010 20580 -
(] 1s3um of Bomys share 4250 .
(4] Ind AS Adjustments x - =
Clasing halance (A] o 51248 481.86 276.08
Othar comprehen ive incoms
Dpening Q.an (0n4) 0.04)
Add: other cemprabeive income for the yes 135 U -
Closing balance (B) 1.8% 0.80 (0.04)
Tolal other wquity (A+Bj 514,41 482.66 276,02
Nature and purpose of other reserves
Other comprehensive income

Mhe Campany recognives change on account of easitrrrant of the el dolined banefit Liabilly s parl of other comprehensive income with swparste disdosie, which
ramprises of actuarial gams and lossas

18 Non current borrawings March 31, 2022 March 31, 2027 Apeil 01, 2020
Swcured
Turm [oan from banks/NEFC's (reter foot note | 1155 - -
Vihicle loar {refer foot note ) 934 1447 1651
Total nan current borrowings 2089 1447 1681
Unsecured
Teem loan from banks/NRTTs fradar oot notn ) - 1750 2557

=——= 17,50 2557

Lrve Cumen Limaturitios of nen-oinent barrouings (Included in note 21) am RAN: -] 1551
Non-current borrowings (as per balance sheet) 1108 2088 2657

The Company's sxposurs o aurency nsks, fquichity mges and interest rats (/s are disdosed In Note af

Footnotes.

Secured loan

(1) Tarm loan

For the year ended March 11, 2022

Indusind Bank Ltd

The Company nas avadled WCTL (Sanetred Uit Rs 1260 M) from Induasing Baok Ui, whieh are sacured Againet fiest and exclusive eharge on the hypotheratien of the
entire Mavalsle fred assats, first por pasay chaige an hypetheication of all curront assets |churge shared with HDFC Barie Lh) and Frge wwd wikusive charge o L of (he
FORACash duposit 1ol Rs 30 millian Alsc, $ioco 1 2 collateral gurantee in frrm of fiet 3nd cxehitive equtalbie murigage of indugt nal ling and buitding of thi Company
stuated wl Hancwar. Futther, there 1 penanal guéanstoes of Oieetar and org of dose irlative of dirsctors.

Ihe tenues for theloan « 36 monte 1a he fully ouitd by 3141 Drcamber, 20449 The foan earriss Noating rate of intarsss of MIBORallyy« 2% 3t manthly tess

for the year ended March 31, 2021

Indusind Bank Ltd

Ife Company kit availed WCTL (Sanctienad Lt Bs 21 00 M) and Magium Teem Loan (Sancticried Limit Rs 1574 Miil, um Indusing Bark Ltd, which are saoured agans
first ane exclusive charge o0 e bypothecation of the satine ricvable fixed assets, first pan paw charge on ypathmization of the current assels (charge shared with HOFE
Bank L) and first and ewekisve charge on lian of the 1OR/Cash dapaslt doc B 4 oy Ikan Alco, thar i a eollatzeal guranten in form of first 2l exdusive aguits sia
"rongage of Industrial lnd and bulding of the Compary & Harid Industrial tared aod ballding of fnkn Teehralogies ot Hatldwar 18 Fstated Partyl, and Industria! land
and building of Raina Mutal Teck Pw Ltd a1 Nowla, (A Related Party), Futher, ther s persunal gurantess 5f Dwveclois andd ane of closs relebve of dirmctors. Also sersd oy
Coevarate Guranter of Invkn Technalagaed Raina Metal Tuch Pw, Lid, Reyalur Lrpens Private Limitad ltarmedly Rovalux Exports) IKIO Selitioas Privats Lunitpd andt Fine
Technolagies (india) Pt Led (Al Related Partion) Tenwe of working capital reen loan i 58 monfhato be fully paid by 37t Dacomhor, 2024, srid sesum e loan of 14

months The wordng capilal tarm lsan esrley ficating rate of interist of MIBORidaly) 2%, at MONtsly 76at anc medkur) i loan cartes s mtarst rate of 9% linhet 1 6
mena €O rate,

(Vehiche Loan
1a) Vehizke Loan alstained from Axis Sank [ imitar amiuntivg t 353706 milliens which = saearnd againyt tw reupective vehicle and |5 iepayabile in 48 oqual insalmeds

sommenang from October 10, 2019, Rate of inteert i S 15% paand balance outstanding as-at March 41, 2027 is Rs. 704 millions {March 31, 2021 ard Apnil D), 2040 Rs.
1127 milliers and Re, 1514 millions respectrauly) out of which R 4564 mill ons i3 repaysble in FY 2022-24,

th) Vehicle Loan omtained fiom HOFC Dank Limriad amaunting to K= 157 milliees which o secyred AAINST respective vakicle aed iy revdyabile in 39 equal matslments
Fommancrg from Apal 07, 2021, Rata of ioterest s 745% pa and badsn e odtetanging A4 at March 31, 2022 4 Rs 120 millic 1y (Narch 31, 2021 and Aped 01, 2020 Rs
158 milliogs and Rs. 2.26 millions respect vely) out of which Ra 051 millions 14 tepayanhe in T 2022-23,

(e} Versle Lown abtained from HOFC Bank Linn s F0anting tn Ra') 53 hilians which b secures ayainst rowoctive vehicle and 10 rapayabla in 39 equal instairionts
commascing froomn Apol 07, 2021 flane of mtermst 5 745% pa and balance outstanding ag gt Marchy 31, 2022 4 Ry 110 millinns (March 41, 2021 and April 07, 2020; Rs ) 54 S
millians 2nd Rs. 207 millions respectivelyl out of vhich Rx. 047 millinns is tepaysbla i 7Y 2022 23

T




IKIQ Lighting Limited

{Formarly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financal Statements far the year snded March 31, 2022
(Al armonerls are i Rupee millions, wnfiss atherwise statech

19 Non-current lease liability

Loasa llability

20 Non-current provisions

Provision for employees benefits rufer (note ne 41)
= Cralualy
+ Compotisated Absenoss

e

Saast witentonaty deft ok

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Apeil 01,2020
181 a :
1.51 3 z
March 317, 2022 Wiarch 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
535 402 i
247 131 0.1
783 533 3162
@ AAA—
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IKIO Lighting Limited

(Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to tha Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(At armounts gre in Rupes milians. unless othvvwise stated)

21 Current borrowings March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

Secured

Cash Cradit 13747 17.63 ELYPS

Current maturities of leng term debt 91 11.09 1551
- a1z 2.2 51.20

Footnotes:-

Secured loan

Cash Credit

For the year ended March 37, 2022
Indusind Bank Ltd

The Comoany has aealled rash credit facility (Sanctioned Limit Rs 96.50 Mn) fram Indusing Bank Ltd, which ace sscured against first and exclusive Lharge on the
hypathecation of the entirs movable fixed assers. it pay pasil charge on hypotheitation of all current assets (Lharge shared with HDFC Bank Ltah and first and exclusive
charge an lien of the FDR/Cach depasit for Rs: 3.0 million, Also, thare is & collateral gurantee in form of first and exclusive equitable martgaye af incustial tand and

buitding of the Compan ¥ #tuated at Handwar. Further. thera 14 personal Gurasteas of Nirertar and one of clese relativa of dirpesors
Tha ioan carnies 2 flaating rate of intorest of 700% per annum linkod with £ month €03,

HDFC Bank Ltd

The company has alo avalled Cash Ceaddit facilty £ LC Umit (Sanctioned Limit Re 50.00 Mn) from MDFC Bark Led, Which is securad aganat pac PaLiU charge charge on
hypothecation of stock and debtnrs (charge shased with Indusind Bank Ltd) Also, thers is 0 collateral Gurantee in fuim of industnal property sitasted &t Neida swhed by

IKIEY Solutions vt Ltd (A Related Party). Furthee, thare are personal guramees of Dirpctars
The Ipan carries fleating rate of interest of 7% per annum (Repa rite + Spread)

For the year ended March 31, 2021
Indusind Bank Ltd
fhe Company has avalled cash credit Tacility (Sanctioned Limit As 6300 Mn) from indusing Bank I which aie cocured agains

=t fisst and exclugive charge en the

hypothecation of the entine miovanle fixed assets, first par passy charge on nypothaicanon of the curent geats (eharge sharod with HOFC ank Ltdl and Tirst and axelusive
charge en lien of the FIR/Casn depasit for Rs. 3.0 million, Al therg /s 3 rollateral gurantee in' form of list and enclusive equitante mortgage of Indugtial laniet amd
building of the Lompany at Haridwar, Industrial fand and building of Inko lechnologios &t Haridwar (A Related Party), and |ndustoal land and building of Rairas Muts! Tach
Put Ltd at Naiet, (4 Ralstod Party), Further, there is persunal gurantess of Directors and cine of cloe ralative ol ditectors, Also secured by Corperate Giirantse et Inkn

Technolugies, Raina Matal Tech vt L, Royalue Exports, IKID Solutions Private Limited and Fine Techmologies {India) P, | 14 (All Relatod Partes)
The loan carrles a flaating rate of interess of 9.00% e annumn linked with 6 mantn 0.

22 Current lease liability March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

| pase lability 140 -
1.40 - =

23 Trade payables March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
tatal outstanding dues of micrs and small eaterpriios (reter nota au 39 4.0 16907 078
total outstaniding dues of craditors othes Man micro and small eteiprises 10607 13939 13777

140.27 175.40 138.55
Note:
Particulars Outstanding as at March 31, 2022 from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 Year 2-3 Yoars More than 3 years Total
1) Micro enterpnises and small ontarprises 320 a - 3420
(11 Othor than micio entarprises ang small antecpnsoes 10563 0.24 = 106.07
(ith Micro enturprises and small entorprises -Disputed Dies . = _
(V) Other than micrg enterprises and smail enterprises Disputad Duces o - -
Total 140.03 0.24 - - 140.27
Particulars Outstanding as at March 31, 2021 from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 Year 2-3 Yoars More than 3 years Total

{1} Micro enterptises and small anteror s 1607 " 16.01
11 Onker than mico enterptiaes and small enteronjes 153.75 564 = 159.39
(1)) Micre enterprises and small entorpnses -Disputad Duss - R . =
() Other than micro enterprises and ymat) entarprises-Disputed Dues 5 : »
Total 169.76 564




IKIQ Lighting Limted
(Farmpry 1K10 Lighting Private Lirmted)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the ywar anded March 31, 2022
(Al amaunts ace in Reipee aalons, (indesy CHfwewise shatne

Particulars Outst thn__nmn:hll.lpohwndmdﬁodrw
Less than 1 yoar 1-2 Vear 2-3 Yoars Morw than 3 yoars Total
1) Micra enteratisms and small antarprzes a7 = 073
1il) Other than micre sriterprisus and small Entelprives 13774 .03 ) 2 13277
(1) Micre entemnises and ymall enterprises -Ceputed Duss = . =
() Other than Mmoo CNURRreg s 3nd small aotw i Disputed Duws = = N »
Total 13852 0.03 - - 138 5%
I Far wade payabiley 1 wlated parties please refer note 42
Il Cther creditor aie non Interast Beanng
i The Company's expasule 1o awrency and ligu idity stk relatid 1o Uiade payables ate dinclosed in Note 46
24 Other current ﬂmnlm“ﬁy March 11, 2022 M.!h 11, 2001 April 01, 2020
Intermst accrued but rot due 003 0.07 e
Expendes pay uble 1265 094 46
Othnr Payabloc 1781 1508 015
30.57 16,09 10 64
—:‘
Note,
« The Cempany's ¥ and liquec cy nishs refated (o trage aayablas ars disdosst [n note 4y
25 Other current liabllities March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 April 07, 2020
Statutivy duss payable a3 e74 260
413 574 !.gg
26 Current provisions Mhnreh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Apnil 81 2020
Provision for employees benwiits refer (note no 41)
Gratuity 0,05 noa noz
« Componsatid Abcunc oy — 440 166 aos
426 168 !‘1.
27 Current Tax Linbilities March 31, 2022 Masch 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Pravision for lncome Tax [net of Advance Tax, TDS and TCs) 1&8%
1285 - 3
Soce inteolonally fof Bk, 5&/
Q\\, G |‘1 r ‘A
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IKIO Lighting Limitsd

{Farmerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the ywar ended March 31, 2022
144 amownts ave in Rupew mitions irdess uMierwre stated)

28 Reveaus from operations  March31,2022  March 31, 3007

Sale of produgt 2,79295 159663
239895 159663

29 Other income March 17,2032 March 31, 2021

Net gain on foreign rurency trandactons and trandaton T 329

Intsewst ineama

Doz 045
Export Incentive 024
Hrafit on sale of propeny, plam & eUuIpment (nat) as .
Finwnes ingomy aat 20c
Pravisians na longer 1oguiTed writtes: Luck 06 .
Meisceflaneai i neane ooi 001
__B2a 376
10 Cost of materials consumed March 37, 2022 March 31, 2021
Upening stock 27620 13138
Add. Purcuse 179545 1497.14
Leax Closiog Stock 45214 27520
—LSE%  onw
21 Change in inventories March 31, 2022 March 11, 2027
Inventaries (ut dosing)
Wordiwn-petagruss ME 254
Finished produtt '9.0! 245
Y T 30.76
Inventories (at opening|
Wotksn-plugress 2431 e )
« Fireshod Sas 1520
307 33 08
PNet (incroase) /decrease in invento ey (68.08) 7.2
32 Employee benefits expenses March 39,2022 March 31, 3037
Faianies & winges, boous & nther Allowant eo nin LEE- 3
Ciroctor's remuriesation 174,00 106,68
Contrlbution to prawdant 2d other hunda trefer note 47) 22 108
Erpooses i ated 10 post-em sloyinert oofined benefit plane (refer rote 41) 90 240
Expuristy rolstad to curmpesated ahsences (refer noted ) 190 EAL)
Stafl wattare oxpe ey 1070 R
e 19445
23 Finance cost — March 313022 March 21 2071
Interest oo borrowing 473 534
Other tavrowing costs uay 022
Hiterest an bessa hatsities [Refer note n 016

534 561

34 Depredation and ivati e ' March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sepr N and Amor trafernove § and 4) 2178 2460
Antortisabion of BOU Agset frefer note §) 069 Qo0
24,47 24 G0

“==SLarir vttty daft Black éa L_J'/‘%.;
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IXIO Lighting Limited

{Farmerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes ta the Financial Statements for the year wnded Mareh 31,2022
(AN Gmotmts g i RGO (milians. iniaes o therrse statexd)

15 Other expenses March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Geoeratar fuel & running ssoenser dz [UF)
Repar & mainten snes 1 an
Job wowek pasd iz nas
Hectriaty dhargas 127 907
Lib tw3bng & research & development asl 255
Hent [refor notz 38) EX b oan
Irsurance chnges 24 152
Rates & taxen an 018
Sonarity charges 1 s
Lenal & protessarnial tharges 1385 857
Tour Z vrawl svpmises Shs 065
Auditor remunerabion (feter faethore) 249 G5
Computer expe oy 271 074
Corporate sanal resporsibility vsperiey (referd) su2 254
Sundry balancs witten off oon et
Loms on sale of property. phant & equipmant nety - 184
Provision for Expected Cradit Lo . o8y
Communizatian Expyisie oRr LR
Miscellmmmony expencas ea7 284

I 29,79
Foolnates:
I Remunwration 1o auditor texchding yoods & wevies tax| March 11,2002 March 31, 2021
Sratutnry Aodit* nas 02%
Tav Ludit nis
Ot Seivices 5]
Cut of Packet Exprnises o OM H
Y7 R VT

“Sratitory Acdit Fees Ine the ymar anded Maray 31, 2521 petains to peyitient Made o previous additor. Statutory Audit fae b thie peir naced Masdh 31, 2022 il irses foet
“or the audt of year ended Murch 17, 2027 due 1o appaintraent of Auaditor, sursuant ta rasigrvation by peevious auditors

36 Disclosure as per Ind AS 13 a0 ‘earnings per Share”

‘March 31,202 March 31, 2021

Basic and diuted warmings per share

Badic earnings per share (rofer niote « & b 110 g2l
Oitated earmngs per share (e note 3 2 b) 12 %323
Notmngl value per share 1aou 1000
‘." ﬁl attetbh N} ‘..qu‘w_._ ool L,

Frofit lor the yoar 280110 2088¢
Frotit attribnrtable 1o aguity shaseboldn . 280.10 205 5@
(b) Weighted averag ber of shares uted at the denominatar 25000000 25000000
W.igﬁhdmmb-rdmhmlwlnﬁc.dlwm 25000000 25000000 !

At prasent, thie company do=s nat Have any dilidten patential egaity hare




IKIC Lighting Limited

{Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
W dmanees ave i Rupee millions akess otwrmeze stated)

47 Contingent Liabilities and Other Commitmants
: — As at Marc 3 Aprd 07,
& March 37, | Avat March 31, [ Asal n .
Demand unde: Sales | ax for the year 2017-18 saminst prnding €

S 1 - -
Fomu* Coiag

Corporate Guaran lee G 14322 29205

"1 the view of 1nanagement the demared m nat wvpected to be matnnal wed o the campany eepects Lo sabinl the relsvant T orms and accerdingly no proyisen s
fequitnd 1o be recordad,

Lapital Commitmants o

P As st March 37, T"A3 at Masch 31, | s at Aprif 01, |
—22 L 1 | 2920 |

Lapital CommitmentiNot of Capital Advances) 257 - :

1. Far the yuar onded March 31, 2022 buwd on subrequent events, the proposed allotinont of [3nd ezt wihich advance of 25 725 1An bad been yiven Ly the company
hans byen caricollod The advance pud Has been fully recoversd and ccorcingly therm arm no cammitments in respect of the said advinre

4, Adyance agamst purchase of Plant snd Mac ninery (capital comtmitment ne! of advance; Rs, 237 millions| has been wdbnequantly adjusied againg the fing! payment
mada

38 Lleases
The Company (3 a lrasor Litsde apeialing Inasz of two pram ey The Caerpany has mecuted nen-sancellobie operating leasss 8¢ 2 period of £ end 3 year respacuvely
Dhisclon e w respact of such aperating leases 'z at geven Solow

The movement in leaze labilties dunng (he yout onded is as tollows

March 37,2022 March 31, 2021

Cipsning Beluce - -
Addition - during tha yoar 405

Tmance vost s etrued during the peood 016 .
Pavrmwnt of leace liabdities 089 -
Adiustment an tof modification - .
Closing Balance 33z -

The details of the inatyrities of leass lab | tes a1 yoar ondad are ay inllows

Murch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Mot later thai: ore yoar

140 -

Latet than ane yose bt nat Later than five years ™
fatee than Te yeal s - ¢
13 .

Right-of-uss (RO acsets

This dhanges in the cacrying vulus of RGU agsets far e yoor onded ara as foflyws -

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Opening Salan ce "

Acldibon ~dunng the year 408

Depreciauon of ROU agsets 10 a9)

AdjusTment an accoant of madiieation =

Closing Balance 338 -

ThieJease agresiseriy do ot hav W restniciive o nesous dacses, other than that those natmally pravakest o wilar agroemeits for use of aasets, rent escalation, and )
loase renewal \ X t'(‘i'
\ e = VA y ™N
C

- Ny

180N D3
LFNN o

~

Ck \ .I




IKIO Lighting Limited

(Fermerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statoments for the year ended March 31, 2022
(A aenourts are in Rupee milions an fess otherwise stated!

39 Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Davelopment Act, 2006;

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 20217 April 07, 2020
The princigal amount and tha interest cue theraon PETNING Urpaid to any MSME supplier as at the enc of
ach aceounting voat inclyded in

Principal amount dus to micro and small snterprises 3420 %ol 078
Imarest due an above - -

The amaunt of interest paic by the buyer in terms of section 1€ of the MSMED ACT 2006 along with the
amounts of the sayment made t= the supplier bayond the appainted Say auning each accounting yoa

The amounts of the eayments mace 1t micre and smali suppliess beyond the appointed day during each
accounting period.

The amount of interest due and payante for the year of detay in Making payment [wnich have been paiet but
beyond the appuintment day dunng the yasr) but without Adching the Intarost specified under the MSMED Act.
2006

Tha amount of Interest scciued and remaimng unpaid at the gnd ol wich AccOunting year

The ameuint of further intirest femaining due and payable even n the sueceeding years, until such date when
e interest dues a5 above ars actually paid to the small enterprise (o1 he purpose of disallowance as a
deductible under section 23 of the MEMED Act 2006
40 Segment reparting
A, Basis for Segmentation

Anoperating segment is a cempanent that engages n business activitioy fram inich it may earn revenues and incur rupenses, including revenugs and espanses that elats
to tranzact:ons with any of the other companents, and for which dizcrute financial information is avaitable,

The board of directors have boon identified ¢ the Chief Cperating Decision Makar FCODM), since they ame responsible for alf major decmion w.rt the prenaration and
execution of business plan, preparation of budgut, planning expansion, allianee, ioint voiture, mergar and seguisition, and @xpansion af any faclity,

The Company’s board reviews the results of each segment on a quarterly basis. Tha eompany's boutd of directors uses Profit after tax (PAT') 10 assess the selotrtiance of
the operating segmisnts, Azcordingly, thesa is only ure repaftable segmiant for tha Company which is *Sale of Prodiet” | hence, nu specific disc luzuros hava been made

Entity wide disclosures
B. Information about repartable segments

Tha Company deals in one business segmant namely "Manutactur irg of LED Lighting" thetefore, procuct wize revenue cisclosures are not dpplicable to the Company.

i. Information about geographical areas

Lomoany operates prmariy under & single gongraphic location e inddia ang accordingly, there &re no separate reportable gengragfical s nents:

C. Revenue from Major Customers:
Revenue from o1l customer 3mounting to Rs 2006.03 millions (March 31 031:Rs 1,510,345 millions).




IKIO Lightting Limited
(Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022
(AN amaimits 2o iis Rupsee mialisag uokess sthorwie Siatect)
41 Employes benefits
The Company conlibules to the dallow g post -employrnent defined benetit plans m (ndia
A, Defined contribution plans:
the Compary makes conteibution, Gelerminnd as A specifed percontag s of emaloyee slanes, i rospect of quality ng eerolopes tewsrds providant Yend, administerse ard managed by the
govemimpnt af India The Company Has e abil Inations otfer than 1o nike the ssedified wertnbutions The contributions ae chargeo te the statement of profit and losz as they arcnie

March 31,2022  Mach 31, 2021
Cort ihution o provident fwsd (tofor note ne B | LAy 531
B. Defined bunefit plan
Gratuity

The Company uperates 4 post-amployment dufined benefit glan for Gratuty This plan. yrtitiey an employee o rucuive hall month's salary for vach yasr of cemgploied et at the time- ol
retivwmont/ent. The gratuty fability & enticely yahndod

The presint value of obligatian is determinee based o Hliarial veloavon wioe e Projectod Unit Credit Mathod, which recegrie sarh pfind of service =< Fiving rise to adiivonad cngloyes beratt
=ntrimment e imauisreg esch unit spsrately lo build up she final obligatan,

The mast recont actuana valugtign of prasent valus: of U defined benets oblgabion e gratuity were carriod out as st 31 March 2022 The prezent valug of the defined besefit wbligaticrs arg the
relited rurrent sarbive Coul and ast 1eavios cust wire weasutod using the Projcted Linit Crodt Mo thod

A The following table sot out the stalus of the defined banafit obligation March 31,2022 March 11, 2021 Aprii 01, 2020
Nut dafined benefit liability

Gratuwty (Unlunded) 532 405 N9
Total empioyoe benefit liabilities 542 4.05 289
INor et 536 4n2 a7
Cosirgnt a6 0g3y 0oz

B. Reconcliiation of the net defined benefit liability
The lulloamog tablo shows 4 recanciliation fram the opaning batances s te ciowng boan e for net defined Lanotit {azset] liab: ity wood ihy pompen sots

March 17, 2022 March 31,2021 April 01, 2020
Defined Fair value Net dnﬂmd Defined Faie vakss of Net defined p—— T Net defined
benefit of benefit olary Staets benefit 5 AL PRI, bunefit
_ obligation  plan asssts luu!)l hability  obligation {wszuty/ fiabifity ) (xsat)/ Hability
Salance 31 the Boyinning of the year A2 40 inm - 289 127 127
Included in peafit or loss -
Current xprvice cost (74 252 20z . 20 143 144
Interest ot tincormme) U4y - ni7 0.26 - 0.25 018 (A5
289 - 289 228 - 2,28 1.58 - 158
Included in OC1
Remeasuremunts fass fgning
= Actuartal boss (gain) anway from;
financa assumptons 045 [0:3%) (0.203 020} Qan G
- demographic assum ptions -
2vpenance adjustinent {11a 118! 10.93) 03] 1040} (040)
(1.53) . (153) 11.13) - (1.13) 0.04 s 004
Othes
Conty butiom pad oy the omnployes
Bt it pad ) . 2 —
Balance at the end of the year 5.0 - 5.40 4,04 . 4.04 2.89 - Lk
Expenses gnised in the St of profit and loss Mareh 33,2022 March 37, 2021
Seevics cost 28 402
Rt intorest rast 0.37 [
C. Plan assats
The Lompany dows not have any pls sscate
a) Economic assumptiony
The printpal Wlians are the fale o satary grawth ate Tha discaunt rame i bmed upon the market ywelds svatsble on goverament bonds st the accauntheg date with 4 ferm shat

matchees that of liabilitles, Salary incrazse rato takes into account of inflation séeoiily, prematinn and o ther 1 dovant factors on dong teem BDasis Valuation assumptions are 35 ‘oligws which hive bean
selected by the company,

March 17,2022 Maech 11, 2027 April 01, 2020
Cisenunt rate Fatn 703% 673%
Expacted rack of future salary [ixrmasa S00% S i, S0

The discaunt rate Fas beon assimed at 31 Mardh, 2022: 7.44% ¢ 31 Masthy, 2027 ang April (01, &2 7 03% ana 6.73% respectively) which & determined Y ekerence t ket yield ot the bnce shiger
Hate on gevenment securitss. The ostrmates of futere salary itcrenses, congdersd in aztuarial wlliation. ke avcount of inflasion, umoeity, p tion and other ndovant factors, such ot suppy and
sl i thee erplayrment ket

B) Demographic assumptions March 31,2022 March 31, lq_l‘l April 01,2020
Il Retiroment age Iyears) e SH Years 58 Yeany 58 Yom
al Morsality rates wciusve of provisicn T

L 203214 -1 { S
for iy F L » IALM (2012 14) INM PC12-14) (ALM 12013 14

I Age- Uptes 58 vears .. '\ 14



1KIO Lighting Limited

Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limvited)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the yeur ended March 31, 2022
Al armovants ave 1 Ry mnllins iniess stharuiye sluated)

£ Sensitivity analysiz
Reusveaidy possble rhamass st the EpoLng date o 0o of the relsvait actuaial assumpsions. holdine ot assemptions constant, would have affectod the defined henesit shingation by the ammcnts
slicwrs balow.

Maech 31, 2022 March 31,2021 April 01, 2020
Increasa Dacroass Increase Decrpase Incroase Docreasw
Siseoant tata 11.00% movermont) 73 ns 0LE on ) ¢35
Galaty escalation rave | 1.00% moverrient) 086 A O 10.5%) 254 (a5

Altheuigh the analysis does not talie aceaunt of ths U] distitnzion of eash Flows exputed urder the slar. it does provide an approx mation of e sEfativity of the assumpliens snown
Servitiaties duis bo movtaiity s nof ratan il and tence immac) of Change rot calceated

Sansitivities &y 10 rabe of infl ation, o of incrase of PeTsiany in paymerit, rate al rcrease of penvions betore cotitenent and da expectancy wenot applicable being & | s bemedis

Description of Risk Exposures:

Valiatons are baxed on cortain aswimption: wihidy @0 dynamic in Astuse and vary avar time. As such company = anposed 1o varnous risks as foliows:
A} Satary Inceaves More than evpected oo in the funirs =alary levels may resulis in increase n the Rabil tiey

B) Discount Rate In case of yeeld on the governmant bongs drops in the fitins peliod than it may resltn | fereess 1) Tability,

€) Withdrawats ~ if the actual withdrawal rate is furr DUl to B more o Lews than expocted then it may resultin increass in the labilities

D) Martaiity i the acsusl meetality e in the fauee wrns oot o be more o0 lesy than expacted thon it may result increage o the Tiahifities

F. Expucted maturity ansbysis of W dulimed banefit plans in futurs yvars

en ratiramont

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2027 Aprid D1, 2020
Duration of defined banefit obligation

Less than | year .06 003 e
fatwean 1-2 yous on 0.0 003
Between 45 ywais oal aso 0
Over b yoars 171 132 091
Total 279 190 128

Spuen ietarationally foft Gkink




IKIO Lighting Limited

{(Farmerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements lor tha year eided March 31, 2022
(Al amaurits are in Rupes millions, untess otharwise statod)

42 Related Party Disclnsure
In accordancy with the rsquitements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclasures, the naermes of the reistad sarties where control existe dndfor with whom transactions have

Tanen piace during the year and vescrption of relatianships, a5 Identified and

(8] List of relatod partios

Relationship

certified by the manzgament are:

Name of related party

Enturprises in which key management personnel and their relatives are able to exercise

sigrificant influence

Key Managerial Personnal

Relative of Key Managerial Parson el

{b) Details of related party transactions are as betow:
Particulars

Raina Metal Toch Private | iimitec

Fine Technolagies (India) Privata | imited
Ikio Selutions Private Limited

Rayalux Lighting Private Limited
Rovalux Faparts

Inko Technologies

Singh Ermecprises

Mi Hardeep singh
Mts Surmest k.]ur

Mi. Saryeet singh

Ms. (shween kaur

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A) Transaction during the year

Expenzes

Purchases

Fine Tachnelogies (India) Prvate Liimited 237.20 180,95
Inko Technoloties 1a7 387
Royalux Lighting Private L mited 2553 1512
Remuneratian

Mr. Hardeep Singh 8500 66.00
Ms. Surmaet Kaur 1950 2220
Mr. Sanjeet Singh 550 1848
Rent

Raina MetaiTech Private Umited 2.54 Q22
Expenses paid on behaif of Company by

Rayaluy Lighting Prvate Limitad an
Raina MetalTech Private | imisad DAQ 046
Income

Sales

Fine Tachnatagies findia) Private Limited tincluding sale of car| 617 166
Royaluy Exports 2156 -
Royalux Lighting Private Limited 1456 -
Haideap Singh 012 -
Ismween Kaur (] -
Singh Enterprises .00

Sale of Fixed Assets

Fine Technologics (India) Private Limited

Royalux Exparts

Royaluy Lighting Private Limited

Mr. Hardeep Singh
Ms, Ishween Kau+

Space indentianally kit blank




IKIO Lighting Limited

(Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts are in Rupee milfiany, unfess otherwise stated)

(€) Balance outstanding with or from related parties as:-

Particulars March 37, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

Amounts Receivable

Rayalux Exports 18393 0,21 015
singh Enterprses 007 aar
Mt Hardesp Singh - 047

Ms. lshween Kaur 003

Inko Technslogios - 072

Royalux Lighting Private Limited - 112

Amounts Payable

Fne Technologies (India) Private Limited 176 498 181
Inko Technologies 0,02
Raina MetalTach Private Limited 019 Q.20 0230
Reyalux Lighting Private Limited 203 .

Corporate Gurantees Taken from

Raina MetalTach Private Limiteg - 1513 ol 26
o Tachnoloyie: 353 G126
Royalux Exports . 513 €1.26
IKIO Soluticns Bivate Limted 35,13 6146
Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited 35.13 61.26
Equitable Mortgage Taken from

Raina Mezal Tach Private | imited 613 G126
KIQ Solutions Private Limited 4463

Corporate Gurantees Given ta

Finw Techaclagies imdia) Private 1imitec - 3526

K10 Sohstinns Privato Limites 14922 13890

Koyalux Exparts 11869

4. Terms and conditions of trangactions with the related parties

I The terms and conditiens of the transactians with &y managemant personnel were rin mmore favarable than those availzble, or which might reasonsbiy he espacted (o be
available, an similar transactions 1o nen-key management personnel telated entitivs on an am's fength basis,

Al outstanding balances with these relatod partios arn priced an an arm's length basis and are to be sattec in cash. None of the balances are secur e

43 Corporate Sacial Rasponsibiiity

March 31 2022

A} Gross smount requiced tg Lie spent By the company daring tha yaar was Rs. 502 millians,
by Amaunt spent duning the year was Re. 502 milions,

€) Thets are no chortfalls as at the Currant Yoar o Praviaus Year

d) The company dows not have ANy aagoing projert going on a4 at March 3, 2022

March 31 2027
3} Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year was Rs 265 millions.

b Amaunt spent during the year was Rs. 265 millluns
¢ The company does nat have ANy ongaing prawet gaing nn as st March 13, 2021

44 Earnings in foreign currency

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2027
FOB valug of sxparts 24.50 €50

45 Expenditure in foreign currency

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

82400 645,57
ELAU

g h
w-Soace atentionally left lank.., { o 7/ “) el ”

Foreign Travelling wxpenditura
CLF, value of imports
Raw matenal




IKIO Gghtinig Limited

(Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited}
Nates to the Finandal Statements for tie yuar onded March 11, 2022
(AN armsunts s (0 Rusee miliank uniess othermse stated)

46 Fair value measurement and finan cial instruments
a Mnﬁm-hcnmq“ﬁv&mhw

Tha following tahia shiows the caiyioy amounts and f21 valees ot financial assets and fimancial |sbiltiss, induding their level it the Fal valuk hiecatchy

i. As on Apnil 81, 2020

Particulars Carrying value Fair value messurement using
Amontived

Fvoc Total level 1 Lowel 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Nan-current

ather- Sernrity deposit o 077

Current

Trade receraion 46.40 4640 -

Carh and cash eguivalents - 66.04 04 -

Bank Batanees Othae thar Cast ae Cach Equivalents - 049 0.49 - -

Cithets - var 087 -

Total 11457 114 57

Nan-current

Sorrawings - 2887 26,57

lense liabsliies - = -

Curvent

Burrowmags 120 5120 - -

tease bl iy - -

Trade savablas 15855 13855

Other Snaneial Habil ties |na Igs_g_

Total 22696 226.96

il As an March 31, 2021

Particulirs Carrying value Fair valus measurement using |

voa Amartised Total Level 1 Lovel 7 Loveld |
co |

Financial assets

Non-current

wihed Securnty deposit - 036 088 -

Current

Trade recwisablyy 15638 156.3% -

Cash and cash equivalents (R 1.91 - -

Bank Balancea Dthar than Cagh & Cazh Frativalents oot on -

Dthen = 109 1.09 .

Total - 16027 160.27

Financial lisbilities

| Nancurment

Borowings 2088 2088 -

Lesasar Jiaboilitiang - -

Current

Rarrowings 2874 »nn -

Laase liahitities - 3

Trade gayables - 17540 175.40

Othwet Brancial | abalit s - 1609 16.09 -

[ Total - 241.08 24109

[is

Sz i evilscyneliy ot blank



IKIO Lighting Limited

[Farmaerly IKIO Ligtiting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the yeur snded March 21 2022
SV amaiints dee m Ruces miflicns, s nthenaise stated)

lii. Ason March 31, 2022

Particulars Carrying value Falr value memuremant using

FVTRL Fvoc! Amaortised Total Lewel 1 level2 | Laveld
cost —

Financial assots

Non-current

Othes- Secunty depost - 163 163 . -

Current

Trade rocena bies - - 25359 25569

Cash and cass equavalents - 650 6.50

Bank Balances Other than Cash & Cash Bquivales t = 2 I a .

| Othars - - 109 1.09 - -

Total - - i68.91 26891 0

Finandal liabiliti es

Nan-cuerant

Lorrowingy . 1ned 11.08 - -

Leaswe Fakdition - - an R 1]

Current

Borrowinas - - 14722 1472z - . -

Lesse bualibtio: lay 1.40

Trade pavables - - 14027 12027 - - -

Other fnancial fiabes . X 51 3051

(Total = - 323.40 | 332,40

Level T uiludes financhal (ns i ments moasursd UBng quoted oces

Luvel 2 The fair value of tinanaal imteaments that a0 pot traded in an active market bs detwrmined wasng valuation lecmmiques which makimise the o of observabie
ket data and raly a5 lirde as peanlde o uritity apecific edunatny I il significam npts reguitad 10 fale value a0 mstniment ae obsurvnle, the instruvant 14

inclued m Jevel 2.
Lavel 3 If ane or mere of the significant inouts i 101 based an abaevable market data, the wstrument € induded in el 3 The fair valug of financal assete and
fahilities included i1 Lovel 3 it datacminad i1 accandanee with generally acapted pazing models baasd on di A cash flew snady using prices fram nhiervalile

curmamt marke: ransaclions and deater quotes of gmila Instruments,

Tha Campany's bunwwings have been Lomfractd af floating rates of wirem: Aceordingly, he rarmyng value of wich finrmuings (chiding intered arcrued but not
dun) which sppronmates fair value.

oo kanrying amaounts of tade weervatles, (rads payables, Gash and casti equivabonts and ather financ.al asseds and Nebilities. appioximates the Lair valuss, thim 1 th e
shart-term nature. Fair value of non-cureat finzncal Auets which indfudes bank depovts |due for maturity 3o twafve months “om the 1epoiling date) and securty
duposits it smiliss 1o the cartymg valuo as thero s o vanificant diff erences betwase gamying value and 51 vl

Tha fair value fer wesrity deposts were calcularad fasec on discounted eah flows uiing a current landig | s Thuy 3ro classified as lavwl 2 fair vakie ins the Gir valus
heerarchy s 1o the indusion of unebsetvabis gt Including countarparty credit nyk

Valuation orocesses
The Management performs the valuntiors af financal pssets and labifiws 1eyquired for fin aneial repoiting parpases on u perodic bais, inciuding level 3 fair values

b W dal risk

Thw Company has sxeasure to the lollowing risks ansir fom Bnandal instruments:
< Sredit g

* Liguictitw risk

* Inkecest rate rish

Risk manaoement framewark

The Company’s Board of Dircctars has overall rsponsbiity for the estabdishment and avers ght af tha Company’s tisk m A tfrarwuwork The Board of Oiractons

haim authorised senion manaeg to mutablish the processes ane snsure contiol ior e Whraugh e mechanism of properly defined famework in |ine with the
busingsses of the campany

The Company's tisk management polioes are established 1o ideritify and analyse the fiske lacnd by the Campany, to ser apprapoate rks [units and canlrols to
monitae ricks and adbarencs tn limits Rigk management polioas aie teviewed ragulady b iefloct changes in markel conditlen s 3ad the Campany's actmutiag

The Company has policies CAVRSING BESCITC MM, ik ms Induest rali sk, Toreign cungricy sk, othee prce sk, Gkt ik, gquldiity eish, and the uss of derlvative and
mon-detivative financial intruments. Compliance with polives s cxposure | imits s rpviwed an a contnaus biaus ig 7
As\
v lf\l
N
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IKIO Lighting Limited

(Formedy IKIO Lighting Private Limmsited)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year anded March 31, 2022
(W amounty are m Rupes mitions, infess atherwse sited)

b Fenancial risk managemont {continued)

() Cradit risk
The maximum exposure 1o credit risks is representad bry the total camying amount of those financial assety in the balance sheet
heuk As at As at As at

b March 31, 2022 March 31, 202y April 1, 2020
T ade rocoivables 25969 15638 4640
Cash and cas s equivalents 650 193 604
Barlh balaiees other thin cashy and cash truniatent y ap! (.49

o im 108 0

Credit rish @ the titk o7 fisang al lo%5 28 the Corpany il 3 custamer @ tounterparty 0.3 financlal instrument (alls ment v contractual obliqations, and Arles

prineipaliy fion tha ONzany s recaivahl s from customers

Thae Company's crucki isk 13 primariy o thy amotint due fiom custemer and |nvwstinests Trae BMESNY MEntalns & delinod cradic palicy sod monitors the “apasuies o
thest oredi risks o an ngeirg basi, Cradit risk on cash and carh [0uivaiets s fundted ae e Lamgany genevally invests in depesits with schary led ¢ amresrcial Larie

WIth nigh ereuit ratings aszigned by demestic orodi rasing Aguicie
The truninium exposure 16 the credit nsk at the reposting date is privvaiily from trade . bles. Trade mecvivabl

LR

d oo are drerived from MIVENUS B3y g

from cistammes prmarily lacated . ndis The Veorpany does marmtor the ecenamic Erramer ih which & operates The Kmpany manages s Credit righ thraugh
Etedit sppravals, establshing ©udil imits and cuntiinely monitonng cradit worthinees of customers to whict {e Company wants cradit terme in the nommal exirs of

Cn adoption of Ind AS 104, the Company uire axperted Liodit lors modul to assess ihe imypainment loss or gam: The Lompony extatlizhon an allewarnice o impairnent
that eepresants it exprcted cracit lossos in reapest of trade racewalile The nanagement uses & dmndified spproach (e, bases! on lifatim= ECLS for the pupose at

impaitment loss Jllowance

Maority of tade tecsivalies are from an dividual cumamer Irate recoivables as at yesr ond 31 Mareh 2022 bramartty inchudes Rs 205 S5 milhoms (March 11 2021 3nd
Aprd D1, 2020 R 137,45 millions and Ka. 0 milllens respactively) tefating to relsouy uonecated from sale of goods Rs 2.006.03 millions {Maech 37 2071+ s 1,510.24

millions). Trade receivables are qenecally tealised wiltin the credst e od

Movement i the allowance for mpanment in respedt of trade rece vahis s

For the year For the yoar

Particolurs endod roded

March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021

e ———— O Y

Balance at the bugining o9 -
Impaiment luss macoamisod J e med) W E2Y 0.3y
Amount written pif = -
Balarce 31 the pnd 029 (K1

Space wilentorally left edenk
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IKIO Lighting Limited
{Formarly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Nohsutbo“mnidﬂahnumhﬂloy--dudmﬂ. 2022

(Al amanmnte are m Nupoe millioas, prfess atbwrwise skated)
ial eisk
(i} Liquidity rish

b Fi

ot (continued |

biguidity ek 1 the ritk that the Company will encaunter ditf cuty
acuthar lirancal et The Company's soproach (o anag
tallen due, under Liath normal and stressed condilione, wit

Iha L ¥ bali

g lisgeincfity ia te unsures as far a4 possibly,
hout incur
that s hguidity postion, Incliding tatal cash (induding bank deposits
A Murch 21, 2022 (March 31, 2021 and Aptl 01, 2020- s 143 milhges snd A=
opweations will anabiet to mest its future biwwiy obligations in the widinary course

10 regudady monitor s Hiquidity

Hurding from group companies te mest s liquidiy eauirements i the shar and bang e,

The Comgany's iquidity nanagement process as. onitorad by macagenenl, ridudes the following
Day to duy fendie g, managed by meestorrwy futury cash flaws 1o ensure that reguirements can beme

Maintaining colling lorecasts of the Cormpany's liepedity

Exposure 1o liquity rek

The following are tha sensaicing conbiaciisl maty Aties of fnanuiil liahilitias at tye

Lul nat due on bormowngs.

pasition on the baw . of sepected cash Tows

i e avalabifity of fu

inmagting the obligations assaniated with its financial liatulitiss 10t are sardes By
Wiat it will havee sufficent higuadity ta et its Kb ities whi=h thay are
11 anJcceptable losses o rakin g damage 1o the Campany's reputation
(1t lias ands eachiding imtarest accrued but not dus) of #e 650 nllione 34
66 04 milkons wapectively) and she antiapsted fubues intemally geserated funds from
of bisiness

Prudent higusdity sk management implits maintaining sufficent cash and miaketable sonunties an
acities 1o meet obligations when due  The Campany's poficy

delives ing cash ar

reing throagh an adequate amount of smadis
requitements b0 ensure that it musintaing sufficiont o of cash and

reporling date: The amounts are grom and undiscolinted, and in dudes inteiest accnued

: Contractual cash flows
As at Murch 31, 2022 [ amaunt fiv
arrying e e Relween ove year | More than five Yotul
to five yoars years
Non current
Non aurrent borawings g 1108 108
L Nabifties 191 - 1491 - 191
Current = = =
Porrowings 18722 AR 23 - 14732
Loone Habalities 140 140 140
Trade psyablss 140.27 1a027 - WMoz
Other financial Lasilities 3041 s - - 3051
Tatal 3240 3 1295 - 332 40
Contractunl cash floves
As at March 11, 2021 wmount ;
: Carrying lits ot onkyut) Between one yrar | Maea than five Fotal
1o five years yoan
Non current
Nean auttent bundwings Juse - 20188 - 2088
Lo | abalit e -
Current
Borrowings 2094 2087 - . ED
Lease (@b [t - - - . -
Trade payahies 115,40 11540 A0
Other finantal labilites 1609 1609 - 16,08
Total 241.09 220.21 2088 - 211
Contractual eash flows
As at Apnl 01, 2020 Carrying amount Betwenn one year | More than five
Lass than ane year 1o five Total
Nan current
Neon current botowings 2657 - 0647 - 657
Lz labiil lins . =3
Current .
Borrowings 5120 5120 5120
Leace laniities . - =
Trade payabies 13855 13655 13855
Dl foanoal Rabilities e G54 - 1064
Jotal 226,95 | $ 26.57 s — 226 9¢
- 3
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TKIO Lighting Limited

[Formurdy IKIO Lighting Privaty Limited)

Notes 1o the Financial Statements for the year onded March 31,2022
(AR amaLile wmin Mopee milians, wess otherse uted)

8. Financial risk management (continued)

1 Market risk

Marka( sk it the nb that the o cagh flows of & fingncial Instruroent will Aletuate because of changes ) market prces: Markot ik covmaarises thiee tyoes of ik
wtert zate ik | CLrrmacy ok and otier prico Vish e Lempany manly has FARONUI IO T typr o muarket rih nomely. urrency nsk and mrest ale ok The obirctive
of marwet nzk Managenient i 16 mandcw and control market risk-sepasures within acenptat e Darametess, wiils opr, mitang the retym

Currency rigk
Curroney rice i the rake that thie futiers randy flows of i financial irtearm e il fluctuars hecaise of ehargue n {o ey wechange satay The Company is aepowd 1 the

The summary of quantis gt data aboul the COITRwy OIS O iency sk, a¢ expressed 1 indian Rupees as of Murch 31, 2022 Marek 3 1 2027 and Apnl 07, 2020

Particulars Ax at March 31, 2022 ]
Amount Arnount
Financial 2ssers
Trade thee vaole N 1450 | usp 0y
|Financial lisbikities
Tuyde Payatids INR J0%4 | usp [ i
Particulars As at March 37,3021 = |
Amount Amount =
Financial assets — .
Trade sucwvatile INR Sd9d | Usp 073
Financial TR = ——— ==
Trade Dayabie INA 4307 | Uiy B (3}
Particulars 1 0%, 2020
Amount
Ferancinl assets = S
|Trade recoivable INR 058 | usp ao1
Financial liabilitics
Trado Payabla e 1778 | usD = 024

Interest rate risk
Intenest rata risk s the righ that the fture eaeh finimn of 4 financiat mstrument will feciuaty becausy of changes in madkat iferest rateg The Company’s main 1nterest raze
ik anisos from lann-term borrewngs wilfl varable rates, which expove the Com pany to cash flow imterusl rate o

Exposure (o interest rate rish
The Company's inturest ratw bk arises mayorly from the term loans tram banky Larrying fioating mte ol e These obligaticns frpees the Company 10 Lash fiw
tnterest vate sk The saposa of tha Campany’s borrowing 1o | e et rate changes as reparted to the manwaETmant ar the and of the TEPOiny poriod are ap follows

Variable-rate instruments As at As at -

March 31,2022 | March 31,2021 | Aprt 01, 2020
Tarm Loan 11.5¢ 1750 9557
Cash Crmanr 137471 1763 35464
Total 14 9¢ 3513 6126
Cash How sensitivity tysis for variable-rate | ¥trs

A reasanabily possibie change ef 50 basis paints hpsh (0 Interest Gitas at the reporting date would bawe ineress sy {docrmased) eqully and prolit o less by the amognty
thawn belaw This analyss sowimes that all other vriables, in partiealar forenys CUITANCY axchangw 14Le4, temain canstant

!’-ﬁdm fit or loss il net of tax
S0 bpsincrease | 50 bps dee 50 bps incrmase | 50 . |
Intornst on tarm loans fram banks
For the year sodad March 312022 h74) 0,74 1.56) 056
For the year snited Mareh 1,202t 10 rgy nig 1013} 013
For the year undud Mas-f 31,2020 Win (51 w0.23) 823 |
SR I tentomiy fef bigmk \
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IKIO Lighting Limited

(Formardy IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statamants for the yoar snded March 31, 2022
(AT armiuils aee i Rogies milions wuress Othorwise stated)

47 Capital Managemant

Tow Aher prrpose of v Camparry's capital Managemeedt, Lapital nehidtes imssd anuty shere capital and all otha Cquity resaives attriautabie (o the oty holders of the
Company,

M ager vt 23sesses the G pany’s capital b gndor 65 mantan an efficient overdl linarscitg stictuy. The Carmpary mabages the capital sbuetine and
mahus adjustments t= it in the light of changes in czanem: cunditians and e risk charactenstics of the indadying soets

T maiwstam o adjust the apital struchylw. the € STRALY ey et cpitil te sharsholders rame new debt o- issup new shares

The Company moniters capilal on the basis o7 the dabt 1o cupilal ration vibich e cadeulgted as miwest-Dearng debls dvided by lalal canital teguty attritatatile to ovinars
of the pacent plus Intredt-bearing debts)

Particutars = I As Asat lunmﬁ.iml
March 37, 2022 March 31, 7021

Borowings 1o <038 M7

Loss: Canhy and cash equival st 1550 (194} (66 04)

Adjusted net debt (4] = aig BITE 3947

Totala quity (8] he s REERT 2%z

wwgwl 0.01 T T

Seace intenticnally st slank.
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IKIO Lighting Limited

{Formery IXIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notas to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(AL amounts are m Aupes allions Lutles Ot raisp ez3ted)

43 Ratio Analysis Disclonure

Ratios i Formula Year ended Year endud % changs
March 31,2022 | Weareh 31, 2021
. Caantent dssutg
Curanl Ratia 275 250 1018%
Current Lasiib s
Ul Eyuity Ratio (Reue Total Ueot g
uio 172%
note () Total Share fickd s Equaty 1) g
—
Eamings avsilable or cebst WY oy
Debt !-v-n} Eovorage Ratie ffianca tam Short ferm debtinduding current 246 a3 2018%
(Refer nate iy mstunities of lory tern) debit)s Carvent Logse
(alnkly
et Prafit alter Tases- #ratorence Chenlorwd (1F
Returnon Equity falio anyl usr 43 RS TS
Equity Shareha dm’s Funds
—
% Cost of Goods Said
Ieontany | o st — an a7 WA
ary s r Aversge kvoory %
Trade Roveivable Tumowmsr  [Credit Sl :
mny 1 4
Ratio (Rafor nots i) Auerage Accouist firepinbles il L e
Ttada Payahle Twnoyer Ciadit Pueehase s
oax 7
Ratiu Rofes Note ) s anje-Arcou it Payaty as ikl Q01%
Net Capital Tumever Rt Salas ‘
ks e39 -7 0%
(Refer Note o Astrage Working Canital #
Net Proiit
‘et it K. Gy oy 1e%
Net Frofit katin lwn
A euen on lEl_W_ 242 os 2111%
Fmplayec ,I'.a;ﬂlal Emplayod
) Duw 15 advirse ntern stional marser sunditions related 10 availaality of eritcal e materab, 3 eam pany b gzl e sdditional werhing capital Btz 15 store
additional raw material

W ESIT Kas inereassd by 2% and debt obhgation e not gune UD 1N propoctsn bul redi red Rach e factors hay contr bited pusitively anc improved she gpdl
SAneCR Coverage ratig

F De tarhighar saius in the 1331 mceth of cuerent year, the propoition of ol due Irade recevables has e reassd salling i owsr debtar fucons fitho

) The company onsute: timaly paymant 19 its ernditor and arcorcegly oven theugh the purchases have [noreased sqowticantly the e i pol 4 caerespoding
cunpatable (ncrwars in trade Paywhies 1 uling in a highes trade papaile hesbsow ratio

) Highar wurkony zanital du (o adaitional inventary as explamnmd o (i) abowe hag fesulted o teduction ol peb werth urniwer 1300

—Lace witearionaty W hisnk ,L)
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IKIO Lighting Limited

(Farmerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year endaed March 31, 2022
(Al amounts are in Rupes millicng, unless athermse stated)

49 First-time Adoption of Ind AS

The company has preparad its firsy Financial Statements |n ccordance with Ind AS fioy the year paded Mar 31, 2022, Far periods up to srd induding the yoar ended
March 31, 2027, the ¢ ompany prepared s linaneial staternents in accordance with Indian GAAP, Induding accounting standards notified ynder the Companmes
{Accounting Standards) Rules, 2005 (as amendad), The effactive dale for Campany’s Ing AS Qpening Balance Sheet is Anril 1, 2020 fthe dste of transition to Ind AS)

The accounting pelicies set out in Note 2 have hesn applied in prepuring the francial statements for the year anded March 31, 2022, the comparstive nformation
Presented in these finandal statements for the yoar ended March 31, 2021 and in the pregaration of 5n opening Ind AS Balsnce Sheat at Asil 1. 2020 (the Company's
date of transition), According to Ind AS 107, the first Ind A% Finanual Statemants muyse use lecognition and measurement panciples that ae based on standargs and
interpretations that are effprtive at March 37, 2022, tho date of first-time preparation of Fancial Statements according to Ind AS, These sccourtting principles and
measurement principhes must be applied retrospectively to the date of transition to ind AS and for alt pes oty preseatad within the first Ind AS Financial Statements.
Any resulting ditferences satwean CUTYinG amounts of assets snd liabilitins zccording ¢ Ind AS 101 as of April 1. 2020 compared with thase presented in the Indian
GAAP Balanze Sheet as of March 3 1 2020, warm recognized in wquity under tetainad earnings within the Ind AS Edlance Sheet.

An explanation of how the Vardition from provious GAAP o Ind AS nas affacted the company’s fnancial position, financial perfor mance and cash flows 15 set out in tho
fuliowing tables and rotes

A) Exemption and exceptions availed

In the Ind AS Opening Balance Sheet a4 at April 1, 2020, the cantying amounts of asssts and liabilities from the Indian GAAP 33 at 31 March 2020 generally
recogmized and measured deeorging ta Ind AS in effect as on March 31, 2020 For certain individual cases, Nowever, Ind AS 107 provides for optivnal axemptions and
mandatory excoplions to the ganensl princlples of retrospective application ol Ing As The Company has used the lollowing exemptions and sxcepticns in preDaring
s Inc AS Opening Balance Sheat:

A Ind AS optional exemptions

A1 Deemed Cast

I AS 101 parmits 5 fiest-time acopter to wlect to zontinue with the TATYINg value for all of its property, plant ;ind equipment as fecoynised inthe financial statoments
as at the date of transition 1o Ind AS, measurod as per the previaus GAAP and e that as ity deemed cast as st the date of trarsition after tuking necessary
adustments for Ge-commissioning liabillties Thiy exemption can also be used for INfangibie assets coveead by ln AS 38 Intangbie Assets and investment property
caveredd by Ind A3 40 |nvestnent Propeltigs. Accordingly, the Company has elscted 1o measuie dll of its property, plant and equipment, intangible sssets and
nvestmant property at theit pravious GAAP Garlyng value.

A2iInd AS mandatory exceptions

A2 Estimates

AN ENY'S eshimates n SCCOMCANCE Wit ing ANS at the Gall Of transiban 1o Ing Ay =hal Qe Tarsstant with estimates mace tor (e same Qati i accoraance with
previous GAAP (after adjustments (o rafiact any differance |n aceounting poficies), unless there |s obuctive avidence that thase estimates e in mror. Ind AS
estimates as st Agri| 1, 2020 are consistent with the estimates as ar the same date made in canformity witn previcus: GAAP. The Company made estimates for

Impaitenent of financial assats based on expoected credit lpes model in accardance with lod AS at the date of fransition as these were not (aauired undar evious
RAAR

A2.2 Classification and measurement of financial assots

Inc AS 101 requires the comaany to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and clrcumstances exuling as at the date of trnsiton Further, the
standard permits measurement of fanncial asyets accountad An amortisea cost basis on facl and circumstances exiiting az at the date of transition, if retrospact ve
application is impracticablo.

Accordingly, the Company. has determined the dassidication of financial asats on the basis of lacts ang clrcumstances existing as at the date of tiansmion,
Measutement of financial assets has neen done fetrospectively except whore the same is impracticable,

A2.3 Dervognition of financial as=zots and liabilities

As per Ind AS 101 an Antity shauld appy derecoonition wequiremants Ind AS 109 orespectively for Wransaction occunng o or after the date of transition to Il AS



IKIO Lighting Limited

(Fermerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the yvar ended March 31,2022
(AL amounts are i Rupes millions. Liless aitietwise stated)

B) R iliations bety

Ind AS 107 requires an entity to

previous GAAP and Ind AS

from proviads GAAP ta Ind AS.

Tecon i equity, total compralisrve ineome and cash flows far prior per

wds. Ihe following tabies reprasent the 1econcillations

April 1, 2020 March 317, 2021
Note | Previous GAAP* Adjust; 1 Ind AS Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fropurty; Flant and i 15056 (059 14697 15395 0.02) 15303
Fquipmant
lntungible assets 1.03 1.03 050 050
Right of use of assets 33 - -
Finanzla astets
(i) Other Financ il Assets adly 077 = 0,77 a9n 0 04) 086
Dafarred tax aszoty (net) n - 138 135 4384 {8, 73} a1
Non clurrent tav ascets (net] a1l 013 210 210
[Other non current assets 039 - D 35 131 003 134
Total non-current assets 152 88 079 153.67 163.60 (0.786) 162.84
(2} Current Assots
Irventory 169,44 169,44 31598 Lo 31597
Financial asuats - -
(1) Trade receivables 104D A0.40) 15731 [0.23) 15636
(0 Fash and:cath BB B6.04 192 ao1 193
wguivalents
1) Bank balances sther 040 049 avi 003
than {11} sbove
v} Other financial sssets a&b 087 - 08/ 1098 - 1.09
Othar current assets el 016 72.6% 102,78 0.01 02,719
Total current assets 355.87 0,76 356.13 5792.09 {0.92) 57817
Total Assets 508.85 0.95 509.80 742 .69 (1.68) 741.01
April 1, 2020 March 31, 2021
Note | Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind AS Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind AS
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
{3) Equity Skara capital 0.50 . 050 050 050
(b) Other equity ato) 282,95 (623) 275,02 482 05 052 2482 65
Total equity 283,45 16.93) 276.52 482,55 0862 483116
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
Financial |labilities
(i) Bcrrowings 2648 Q.09 2657 20.88 JOEB
(1) Loasa liabilities " o 0 - =
Provisions 8 ~ 362 308 880 327 333
Defarrad tax liability (rat) [ LALE] (¥ 15) B -
Total non-current
liabifitios 26,63 156 3019 79.48 {3.27) 2621
(2) Current liabilities
Fitnaicial Labilives
(1) Boriowings 5120 51.20 28.72 2872
(i) Leasa Habilities b -
{il) Trade payables 13035 320 13885 164.72 1168 11540
(1) otner financial lighilities b 1462 13.98) 10,64 2135 (11 26) 1604
Other current liabi ity 280 - 2.60 974 A
Provisions c 010 030 1,132 O5E 169
Total current liabilities 198,77 432 203.09 230,66 0.92 231.64
Total equity and liabilities S08.85 0.95 509.80 742 69 (1.67)

* The pravious GAAP figures have been reciassified to confurm t

@ Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note N |

A
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IO Lighting Limited

[Formarly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes ta the Finmcial Statements for the year anded March 31, 2022
LAY Aty ave i Ruigee oviliony, Liadiess oierante sated!

€l Reconciliatian of tatal profit and los= for the year ended March 11, 2021

| Note Pravious GAAP” | Adjustrments Ind AS
[INcome
Revemnua from aperatons ELR 1509 159663
Other Incoma 2 ATy nm 376
Total Income 1461543 (15.09) 1.600.19
ENPENDITURE
Cuet of matesiaks consumad 1,05224 0oz L02230
Changes 1 inveritory 132 - 732
Fmployes Ll cxnensn « 19607 &7 19140
Finnnes ewpeias a&b 271 N el
Dapreciation and ameetization | &ly 2460 - 24560
Other mpenses &b 308y 050 39y
[ Tatal Expanses 1,339.27 115.85) 1.324.02
Prafit belore tax 27561 0.7% 2176 37
Prinr parad sspernsos/fncome) (Nen I [192) Taz oo
Proiit after excoptional item but before tax 26769 858 276,37
Curvant tax
Lusrant yeor Ti58 7158
Dofarred tas " (4 94) 1.98 X))
Enrker yaacs -
Tolal tax exponse 6855 1.95 J0.57
Profit aftar tax 199.10 670 20580
Other comprehensive income
framna that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
Tin muasuremnent of defined bonef plars A&h 113 113
Income tan reéateing to ramessurament of defined Beantt plays w 1020} 10.29)
Total other comprehonsive income for the year - 084 054
Total comprehenzive incame for the year 19%.10 754 206.64
* The previous GAAP figures Save been reclasdiod 1o confom to Ind AS presantation ragusements fer e puripaves al this nats
—Saace iteriiernally fft hiank
AN o
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IKIC Lighting Limited

(Formerly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
14k amounts-are m Rupee milions, unloss othendss stated)

D) Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31,2021 and April 1, 2020

Note March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Total equity ishaseholder's funds) as pu previons GAAR AR S5 24345
Adjustmants:
Opening (nd AS adjustments 16:93)
Frior period adjustment { 792 273
Adjusiment of iease fabilitics/ROU b -
Amortisation of 5D receivable/payable 3 (001)
Finance ease b
Expected credit ioss d
(iiatuity expenses c 200 12.85)
Componsated Absences expenses c {0.34) 083
Cthee Expensa Adjustrmpnt (090
Tax impact of above adjustment= .
Deferrac Tax . [158) 1.52
Total adjustments (0.23) (6.89)
Other comprehensive incame (net of tax):
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plans (net of tax) h 0.34 (0.04)
Total equity as per Ind AS 423.16 276.52
E) Reconciliation of tatal comprehunsive income for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note April 1, 2020
Profit after tax as per pievinus GAAP 1949 10
Adjustments:
Prior period adjustment f 7.2
Adjustment of lease labilities/ROL b
Amortsation of S0 rece vable/payable a 10.01)
Other gypenses ad|ustment 108Nl
Gratuity enpences « 20
Compensated Absances SXPENSeY c (0.34)
Defarced Tax " (1.98)
Total adjustments 6.70(
Profit after tax as per Ind AS 2058
Other prehensive i {net of tax):
Actuarial lnss on defined benefit plans inat of tax) c&h 0.84
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 206.64
Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of cash flows for the year ended March 31,2021
Notes Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS

Net cash flow from operating activities i (6.02 553 10,49)
Net cash flow from investing sctivities 2957 10.32) (29.8:)
Net cash fiow from finana ng acbvities {2501 472 (33.73)
Net increase/(decrvase) in cash and cash equivalents (64.60) 049 64.11)
Cash and cach equivalents as at Apnl 1, 2020+ i 5553 049 6 04
Cash and cash equivalents ag at March 31,2021 1.93 1,93
* Cash and Cash squivaionts in GAAP indudes “"Hxad deposit maturity period meore than 3 months but iess than 12 months” but It is mot included under Ind a5,

Space [ntuntenally left blank,
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IKIO Lighting Limitad
|Formaerty IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Noter to the Financial Statemants for tiu year ended March n, o2
VAl amounts are us Rupoo milions. ankess otiessoss stared)

Notes 1o first-time adoption:

(a} Security Deposits

Usnder g GAAF int Free seturity deposits. (that are reflotabl s in 7ash on complilion of the trm) are racoeded al Hisw ranzaction value, Uncur Ind &5, ol
financil mssets am required 19 22 recagamed 31 far yaks Accordingly the Campany has lur vahied theds seaity deporits usng the EHoctlvg Intergat Rt (e
metnog. Thee diffrence betwess tiw 1ai valty 3nd trnsaenon vakue ot the e of intial recagoition has besry recoqoiied oz oropaid ren/dvfermed (neomye 26 the case
may be fo the subsequent yrace, the fan vakue of seeurity depoalts hive bioer increatsd/decreased Sy ereagniton ol corvspanding interest N rmsex e app binyg
th LR ard prapai) rert/aefarred income hay been amaritiectecogrized over the period of secuty deposits

(b} Finance Lease

Unday the provims GAAF, opsraling leise oxponses ire charged 1o the Staserven. of Profi & Loss Ind &% 115 hay ruplaced the existn g eaves slundard ged rolased
Irtmpretations Ind AS 116 intradices « vorgle fassee sccaurting v odel And ey < hssoe (o roeagnize arsets amd halilibes for o loasez with an term of moce than
1@ months, unks i tha underlying astet is of bw velus. The standard alse tantaing eshanced disclosere roquaaments Jor g see

1e) A of arnploy e henefits -

Both under Indie GAAP wwd Ind A5, the eaanpay ecoymaed tosts miated to its post-emgpl oyment dofined Banefit plan oo an achuarial Bags. Under lndisn GALE the
erter cost, Incuding aciue al gans and fatem, ae chargud 1o the statement of profit o less. Howover, Undae Ind-AS, carmrasimments leomprising of dctianz| gaira
A lozses, the wite ot of the axsed ce ling, excluding amournts | ckaded in nee interest on the net defined beneit fabibty and the renes o Pl assets unchuding amaunty
nchieded in netinternst 00 the net defined bunafit liability) sre recogaised in Othar Compichensive Insoma

(d] Trade recemvablos :

Undor the aravious GAAR, provision fr dos bl detiis are recognizes when loss svert ificatons are visible Howeyer, as por Indd AS 109, the Company is weweed 1o
Aprdy wepechid Ludit loss model for rorogmiseg the allawance for coutiul debty Biperted amdit losses are dofiaed 25 the dirence betaeen the contractus] N
fatvin dite to. the Company and cash flow that the Campany moect 1 recara A5 2 renult, the allomancus far doubstful deists ae Fecognited 1 the books of accoun
with 3 earrotpon ding dearesass in wntained wamingz/trade receanblas

(%) Deferred taxes
Ihe above changes incrvased/ [decrmand) th Caforrod 1 acset 35 Frllows basmd ©i & bae ritn of 261 7% 2 L7k o financial year 200520 & 202023 reipectively:

Inddiun GAAP raguires eeferred thr scroundif | wing the income statwoml appioachy which focusis on diffeances betwaen tasable plofits and acoounting profits for
the ownad. [1d-AS 12 “Incams Tawes" requmes brtities Yo accouit fur dsferred taens wnng the balance sheet npproadd, which foades an temporary diffeienus
hebwman tlve carryen g amount of an assel o liability ir the balance theet and s tav have The aimpleation of Ind-A5 12 approach has resurod in reengnition of Jelerrod
tax on new temporary diftecencas which was vot required under Indian GAAR.

The abave changes (docreased) the deferrail tas anwed 3 Tolows:

articul ] Note Apeil 01,2020 | March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022
Impact of change in temparary diff b Tearnng ard Lux Ak o 234 LE]
Dase of asets
l';;puz of change m tomporary differwices betweoer: CaTnng amolnt ard tax 0™ in 226
Leave of | ability

= —J [ETY I an 475 |
|f) Prior period error
The Company has ioentiled eartain wrssise wilkh o related 1o financal yisar 307930 now the sanie g buer Charaed 15 epening reversm as 3t Aol 31,2020,
(q) Other equity:

Ratained wacrarigs as ot Apnl 1), 2000 has boe adanted ronsecumt 1o i Jbove tnd AS trans fian st

(h) Other comprehensive income

Under Ineti: GAAR, the Corrpany has ot fmesented other comprehonsve sicore (O separately s that have beg elis sifind from statweent of pofit and loss
19 other comypichienuve incame includes remeasuten ent of defined bans it phans tnat of tan, Hance, Indian GAAP profit o ks i reconaied o Yolal compretisntive
Inrama as per [od AS

() Satement of cash flows
The transimon from [ndian GARPR to Ind A% has not A a mater sl mipac on the statsmant o eashs e

50 Deferred Tux Assut (Net)
A Amounts recognised in Prafit or Loss

Current tax expense Mareh 11, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current, yeal ! 7158
Adiisrment for prcw gears 114 -
10025 73158
Deferrad tux expense
Lhaage in tecognised temporary diffetrnens (A 13.07)
0azy (207
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IKIG Lighting Limited

{Formerly IKIO Light:ng Private Linvited)

Notes to the Financial Statements {or the year snded March 31, 2022
(Al amseiaee are i Rupee milfany, unioss athorwise stalpd)

B A gnised in Other Comprehensive |
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Bafore tax  Tax (Expensel/ Income Net of tay Bafore tax Tax (Expense)/ Net of tax
R nasuremonts. of definec AT ) 038 1.1% 112 029 nad
bt lakidity
153 {0.38) 1.3% i 0295 o
€. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rate Amount Rate Amount
Profit bafore tax 25174 37093 2517T% 737
Tax waing the Company's dombe b rsle  [AY e 56
Tax wiffuct of
Na= -deduct bie sxpensas [.7s) (LRL)
New-ti eaniles sncome .08 (1}
Othars ety nazy
Defesrred Tas nas PV
Prioy yrar orrorsfadjstsment 114
Totsl 2 421 o
(A1) 5.3 70.57
0. M In det d tax bal
Mareh 31,2021 Recognized in Reeagrired In March 31, 2022
PRl ocl
Deuferrad Tan Assels
Property, plant 3nc equipment and intan gikles z2u4 D39 7
implayre Banafits T Sl ] 163 ]
L labnibbs < EEST - (BUL3
Other Bnanc ol Labilies ont 160y - -
Sub- Total (a) w1 (0.64) 153 5.00
Deforred Tax Listeili ey
ROL ass=1s [0AS) nas)
Other financ il guasts .00 0%
Sub- Total (k) {0.00) 10.85) - (0.85)
Nout Deforrnd Tas Awel (a)+(b) 41 (1.49) 1.53 4.15
Apeil 01,2020 Recognized in Recognized n March 31, 2021
PEL ocl
Deforrod Tax Assets
Propeity, plent and etwime it sod intamgrbles naa 120 2
{mployee banelits 094 1.2 36 77
Liase liadulhes
Otha g ol habilties - 0.00 0o
Subs- Tolal (a) 138 n [038) 4n
Defernd Tax Linhilitiny
ROU awoly
Other financal assets - (000 1000
Sub- Total (b) - (8.08) - (0.00]
Nut Deferred Tax Assat (3)#(b] 1.38 i (0.35) AN
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IKIO Lighting Limited

(Formarly IKIO Lighting Private Limited)

Nates 1o the Financial Statements for the yuar anded March 11, 2022
(Al amounte xw m Rugar millions, niess oiduwie stassctl

51 Details with ruspect to the Bonmmi Properties
Nu proceadings bave e nsiated or pending sgainat s entity under the Berami Transartions {peahibition] Act, 1989 fos thi the year entiod Ml 41,2022

52 Undisclosed income
Thirtet v no mach ncome wivich has not besn dedesed in 150 beoks af Accounte. Ma s incamn iy = surwmdered o disclazed us ineome dunng the vear in the The
ASs0@Ments under bscome Taw Aet, 1961

53 Changes q to dmant ta Schedule ll of Companies Act, 2013
Minisby of Corporate Affairs ("MCA*) asucd notfications tated March 34 2021 to amand Schisduly I to the Cemparies Act, 2013 (the *Amendeg Schisdule 817 o
enhance the disclotares fequired o be made by e Company i its firane @l stazements These s drnents are zpplicable to t1e pany (ot the finanoinl year
arting Aped D1, 2021, Huncs Cempany has ncorperated all the applcable amwodments i s Firvaneial Sataments for the year snded March 37, 2022,

54 Details of Ceypto Currvacy or Virual Currency

Profit of Joss on transactimes srvoluang Cypso curoney e Victual Cunery No tranzacton dun 1y thie pariod
Amount af currenicy lwedd oy 2t the reparing dite o Transaction dunng thy pietind
Beposms of advaves 110m 3oy persan (o the puspase of' trading of (nvesting in Crypo Currency / |Na tracsaction during the peeind
sl ety
55 Wilful Defaulter:
No bank or firancal nstitution has deeleed e conmpany as Vo derultr
Ssmlnmdlniinimdlewhuﬁnd:hu, i shall be peavided in ruspect of:
(Particulars |Pescription

Transaciicon whorw an sntity has orev ded any advanee. boar oar wvested funds o eny. clhar [No such ransachian has Laken plack dunng the period
perenn {s) or wntity/ entities. inchidtng Torsign enitios.
Iransuctions whece an writy as. 1oceived any Fand from uny peson () 01 entity/ aotitiva NG 0 sransachon has Giken place dun ng the pariced
|nschading Yores) n antity,

ST Relationship with Struck aff Companies:
No banzaction has been made with the rampany stirack o'f unider section 248 of Tha Companies Act, 2013 ur sechon 560 of Campamres Aet, 1956 g the year
wnded March 31 2022

58 Registration of charges or salistaction with Fegistrir of Corny
N\ aoplivable cases whare registration of charges o0 Lt afactisn s eaquerwd with Regletear of Comaanies have heon dene Mo Iégintration or wabzfactian 4 pancsng for
e penan eoded March 31, 2022

59 wwmmmdmdmmk

Where the company has complieg with the number e iy peeserioed undae douse (87) uf section 2 1f the Act sead with Companies (Resbiclion on number of Layest

Rules 2017,

Nolayars of compamis bas besn establshed beyand the hnut prescribad az par shove said saction frulas

60 Loan or ady by d to the p ,.dlnﬂusudﬂdﬁndlhrda-d‘nnh:
Nelon o advaiices (o the natirs of lears A -QEINtec to the promoters, diractons, kay managedial pasong wod e relared Fehes (4s dolined Under Companias At
20331 mither seaeally or jolnty with ey cthel peevon that are.
fal reaavadies on damand or
(bl witheut specifying any teems ar penod of ogayment

67 Pruvicus your's figures huss boen regroupes £ reclosstd as per the curreit yuar'y presentation for fhe oo e af
cormparalsfity

As per our report of wan daly,

Far BEJC & Assocates LLP For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Charlersed Acomiritams IO Lighting Linited
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